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1. coRpoRAte stRuctuRe AnD sHAReHolDeRs

Operating corporate structure as of 1 January 2008

*member of the executive Board

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2007 CORpORate gOVeRnanCe

Listed corporation: Ascom Holding Ltd.

ascom Holding ltd. (ascom Holding sa, ascom Hold-

ing aG) is a joint-stock company headquartered in berne,

switzerland. it has a share capital of CHf 18 million, divided

into 36,000,000 registered shares with a par value of CHf

0.50 per share.

the company’s registered shares are traded on the

sWX swiss Exchange main board under securities no.

1133920, symbol ascn.

ticker symbols:

bloomberg: asCn sW�

reuters: asCn.s�

market capitalization as of 31 December 2007 was

CHf 444.6 million.

Unlisted Group companies

the following companies belong to the ascomHolding

ltd. scope of consolidation (see table on page 21).

Board of Directors

CEO
riet Cadonau*

CFO/Investor Relations
alberto romaneschi*

General Secretary/
Corp. Communications
Dr Daniel lack

Wireless Solutions
fritz mumenthaler*
(Deputy CEo)

Security Solutions
Dr fritz Gantert*

CoRpoRAte goVeRnAnCe
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Country Company Location Capital Investment

Austria ascom austria GmbH Vienna Eur 3,634,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100 %

Belgium ascom (belgium) nV brussels Eur 1,424,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

Czech Republic ascom (CZ) s.r.o. prague CZK 200,000 ascom (schweiz) aG: 100%

Denmark ascom Danmark a/s silkeborg DKK 1,200,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

Finland ascom (finland) oy Vantaa Eur 562,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

France ascom sas Guilherand-Granges Eur 5,000,000 ascom Holding sa (f): 100%

ascom Holding sa (f) Guilherand-Granges Eur 9,600,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

ascom (france) sa nanterre Eur 2,000,000 ascom (sweden) ab: 100%

ascom multitoll solutions sas orsay Eur 3,648,000 ascom sas: 100%

Germany ascom Deutschland GmbH frankfurt/m. Eur 2,137,000 ascomunternehmensholding GmbH: 100%,

technologiepark teningen
GmbH

teningen Eur 6,136,000 ascom unternehmensholding GmbH:
94%, ascom (schweiz) aG: 6%

ascom GCt Grau-communica-
tions technology GmbH

frankfurt/m. Eur 1,534,000 ascom unternehmensholding GmbH:
94%, ascom (schweiz) aG: 6%

ascom unternehmens-
holding GmbH

frankfurt/m. Eur 5,113,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

Hong Kong ascom Hong Kong ltd. Hong Kong HKD 1,500,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

Mexico ascom de méxico sa. de C.V. méxico, D.f. mXn 50,000 ascom sas: 100%

Netherlands ascom (nederland) bV utrecht Eur 1,361,000 ascom (sweden) ab: 100%

ascom finance bV arnhem Eur 45,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

mocsa real Estate bV utrecht Eur 454,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

ascom tateco bV Hoofddorp Eur 18,000 ascom (nederland) bV: 100%

Norway ascom (norway) a/s oslo noK 1,250,000 ascom (sweden) ab: 100%

Poland ascom poland sp z o.o. Warsaw pln 2,405,200 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

Russia letus Zao st.petersburg rub 10,000 ascom (finland) oy: 51%

Sweden ascom (sweden) ab Gothenburg sEK 96,154,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 66.4%,
ascom uK Group ltd.: 33.6%

ascom sweden Holding ab Gothenburg sEK 100,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

Switzerland aiWp aG in liquidation berne CHf 500,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

biWp aG in liquidation berne CHf 50,000,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

ascom (schweiz) aG berne CHf 28,000,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

Wolf Computer aG
in liquidation

berne CHf 100,000 ascom (schweiz) aG: 100%

UK ascom Croydon ltd. Croydon Gbp 600,000 ascom uK Group ltd.: 100%

ascom Dartford ltd. Croydon Gbp 1,000,000 ascom uK Group ltd.: 100%

ascom (uK) ltd. sevenoaks Gbp 50,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

ascom uK Group ltd. Croydon Gbp 5,000,000 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

USA ascom Holding inc. rockaway nJ usD 10 ascom Holding ltd.: 100%

ascom (us) inc. morrisville nC usD 10 ascom (sweden) ab: 100%
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Shareholders

Registered shareholders

as of 31 December 2007 therewere 6,950 shareholders

registered in the ascom Holding ltd. share register. share

ownership as of 31 December 2007 is as follows:

Number of shares Number of shareholders

1 to 100 1,634

101 to 1,000 3,892

1,001 to 5,000 1,167

5,001 to 10,000 123

more than 10,000 134

Total 6,950

Changes subject to disclosure requirements during the

2007 financial year

in an announcement dated 16 January 2007, published

in compliance with art. 20 of the stock Exchange act (sEs-

ta), trident European fund, Cayman islands, disclosed that

its share of ascom voting rights is below 5% (soGC notice

of 26 January 2007).

in an announcement dated 17 January 2007, published

in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Victory industriebeteili-

gung aG, Vienna, disclosed that it holds ascom securities

accounting for 20.1 % of voting rights (soGC notice of 26

January 2007).

in an announcement dated 17 January 2007, published

in compliancewith art. 20 sEsta, sterling investment Group

ltd, british Virgin islands, disclosed that its share of ascom

voting rights is below 5% (soGC notice of 26 January

2007).

in an announcement dated 19 January 2007, published

in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Deutsche bank aG, lon-

don branch, london, and Deutsche bank aktiengesellschaft,

Zurich branch, Zurich, acting as a group, disclosed that it

holds ascom securities accounting for 8.972% of voting

rights (soGC notice of 26 January 2007).

in an announcement dated 22 January 2007, published

in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, bank Vontobel aG, Zurich,

disclosed that it holds ascom securities accounting for

6.53% of voting rights (soGC notice of 26 January 2007).

in an announcement dated 23 January 2007, published

in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Deutsche bank aG, lon-

don branch, london, and Deutsche bank aktiengesellschaft,

Zurich branch, Zurich, acting as a group, disclosed that it

holds ascom securities accounting for 13.381% of voting

rights (soGC notice of 30 January 2007).

in an announcement dated 25 January 2007, published

in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Hasler stiftung, berne,

disclosed that its share of ascom voting rights is below 5%

(soGC notice of 1 february 2007).

in an announcement dated 29 January 2007, published

in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, bank Julius bär & Co. aG,

Zurich, disclosed that it holds ascom securities accounting

for 7.98% of voting rights (soGC notice of 1 february

2007).

in an announcement dated 31 January 2007, published

in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, bank Vontobel aG, Zurich,

disclosed that it holds ascom securities accounting for

10.275% of voting rights (soGC notice of 6 february

2007).

in an announcement dated 21 february 2007, pub-

lished in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, merrill lynch Capi-

tal markets aG, Zurich; merrill lynch, pierce, fenner & smith,

new york; merrill lynch international, london, and black-

rock investment management (uK) ltd, london, all com-

panies being subsidiaries of merrill lynch & Co inc., new

york, and acting as a group, disclosed that it holds ascom

securities accounting for 5.15% of voting rights (soGC no-

tice of 28 february 2007).

in an announcement dated 1 march 2007, published in

compliance with art. 20 sEsta, bank Vontobel aG, Zurich,

disclosed that it holds ascom securities accounting for

9.53% of voting rights (soGC notice of 8 march 2007).

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2007 CORpORate gOVeRnanCe
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in an announcement dated 5 July 2007, published in

compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Deutsche bank aG, london

branch, london, and Deutsche bank aktiengesellschaft, Zu-

rich branch, Zurich, acting as a group, disclosed that it holds

ascom securities accounting for 9.821% of voting rights

(soGC notice of 12 July 2007).

in an announcement dated 5 July 2007, published in

compliance with art. 20 sEsta, bank Julius bär & Co. aG,

Zurich, disclosed that it holds ascom securities accounting

for 10.13% of voting rights (soGC notice of 12 July 2007).

in an announcement dated 3 august 2007, published

in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, bank Julius bär & Co. aG,

Zurich, disclosed that it holds ascom securities accounting

for 9.83% of voting rights (soGC notice of 14 august

2007).

in an announcement dated 27 september 2007, pub-

lished in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, bank Julius bär &

Co. aG, Zurich, disclosed that its share of ascom voting

rights is below 5% (soGC notice of 3 october 2007).

in an announcement dated 7 December 2007, pub-

lished in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Deutsche bank aG,

frankfurt, disclosed that it holds ascom securities account-

ing for 5.533% of voting rights and further holds sale posi-

tions (granted conversion and share purchase rights) with

voting rights conferred of 14.423% (soGC notice of 19 De-

cember 2007).

in an announcement dated 7 December 2007, pub-

lished in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Zürcher Kantonal-

bank, Zurich, disclosed that it holds ascom securities ac-

counting for 25.89% of voting rights and further holds sale

positions (granted conversion and share purchase rights)

with voting rights conferred of 2.57% (soGC notice of 19

December 2007).

in an announcement dated 10 December 2007, pub-

lished in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Vontobel Holding

aG, Zurich, disclosed that it holds ascom securities account-

ing for 2.46% of voting rights and further holds sale posi-

tions (granted conversion and share purchase rights) with

voting rights conferred of 17.54% (soGC notice of 19 De-

cember 2007).

in an announcement dated 12 march 2006, published

in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Zürcher Kantonalbank,

Zurich, disclosed that it first held ascom securities account-

ing for 16.43% and that after a second transaction on the

same day 1 march 2007 its share of ascom voting rights is

now below 5% (soGC notice of 19 march 2007).

in an announcement dated 13 march 2007, published

in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Victory industriebeteili-

gung aG, Vienna, disclosed that it first held ascom securi-

ties accounting for 9.5% of voting rights and that after a

second transaction on the same day 1 march 2007 Victory

nowholds ascom securities accounting for 24.77% of voting

rights (soGC notice of 19 march 2007).

in an announcement dated 11 april 2007, published in

compliancewith art. 20 sEsta, merrill lynch Capital markets

aG, Zurich; merrill lynch, pierce, fenner & smith, new york;

merrill lynch international, london, and blackrock invest-

ment management (uK) ltd, london, all companies being

subsidiaries of merrill lynch & Co inc., new york, and acting

as a group, disclosed that its share of ascom voting rights

is below 5% (soGC notice of 27 april 2007).

in an announcement dated 23 may 2007, published in

compliancewith art. 20 sEsta, Victory industriebeteiligung

aG, Vienna, disclosed that its share of ascom voting rights

is below 5% (soGC notice of 5 June 2007).

in an announcement dated 23 may 2007, published in

compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Zürcher Kantonalbank, Zu-

rich, disclosed that it holds ascom securities accounting for

20.11% of voting rights (soGC notice of 5 June 2007).

in an announcement dated 5 June 2007, published in

compliance with art. 20 sEsta, bank Vontobel aG, Zurich,

disclosed that its share of ascom voting rights is below 5%

(soGC notice of 11 June 2007).

in an announcement dated 18 June 2007, published in

compliance with art. 20 sEsta, bank Julius bär & Co. aG,

Zurich, disclosed that its share of ascom voting rights is

below 5% (soGC notice of 22 June 2007).

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2007 CORpORate gOVeRnanCe
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in an announcement dated 29 December 2007, pub-

lished in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Vontobel Holding

aG, Zurich, disclosed that it holds ascom securities account-

ing for 2.28% of voting rights and further holds sale posi-

tions (granted conversion and share purchase rights) with

voting rights conferred of 6.15% (soGC notice of 9 January

2008).

in an announcement dated 29 December 2007, pub-

lished in compliance with art. 20 sEsta, Deutsche bank aG,

frankfurt, disclosed that its share of ascom voting rights is

below 3% of voting rights (soGC notice of 9 January

2008).

Significant shareholders

no shareholders holding more than 2% of the share

capital were recorded in the share register at 31 December

2007.

this does not cover shares which are not registered in

the share register (Dispo shares). Dispo shares amounted

to 61.5% as of 31 December 2007.

the following parties are regarded as significant

shareholders, as defined by art. 663c para. 2 of the swiss

Code of obligations, in accordance with the disclosure an-

nouncements made:

Zürcher Kantonalbank, Zurich: ascom securities account-�

ing for 25.89% of voting rights as well as sale positions

with voting rights conferred of 2.57% (announcement

dated 7 December 2007)

Vontobel Holding aG, Zurich: ascom securities accounting�

for 2.28% of voting rights as well as sale positions with

voting rights conferred of 6.15% (announcement dated

29 December 2007)

the Company held 580,800 own shares at 31 December

2007. there are no known shareholders’ agreements.

Cross-shareholdings

the ascom Group has not entered into cross-share-

holdings with other companies in terms of capital or voting

rights.

2. cApItAl stRuctuRe

Ordinary share capital

since 6 april 2006, the share capital has amounted to

CHf 18,000,000, divided into 36,000,000 registered shares

with a par value of CHf 0.50 per share.

at the annual General meeting on 6 april 2006, the

company’s share capital was reduced from CHf 198,000,000

to CHf 18,000,000 (par value reduced to CHf 0.50). par

value of CHf 5 per registered share was repaid on 28 June

2006.

at the Extraordinary General meeting on 4 December

2003 the share capital was initially reduced from CHf

225,000,000 to CHf 123,750,000 in two stages (par value

reduced to CHf 5.50) and subsequently increased by CHf

74,250,000 to CHf 198,000,000 through the issue of

13,500,000 new shares with a par value of CHf 5.50 per

share. in a resolution passed on 22 December 2003, the

board of Directors noted that the capital increase had been

implemented.

the share capital is fully paid up. the participation

capital in the amount of CHf 38,875,000 in existence at the

time was dissolved on the occasion of the General meeting

held on 11 June 1991.

in 2000, uniform registered shares with a par value of

CHf 10 were introduced by splitting the existing registered

shares with a par value of CHf 100 and bearer shares with

a par value of CHf 500. Each share carries one vote and all

shares carry the same claim to dividend payments.

Shares and participation certificates

31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Number CHFm Number CHFm

registered shares
nom. CHf 0.50

36,000,000 18 36,000,000 18

registered
shareholders

6,950 7,110

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2007 CORpORate gOVeRnanCe
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ascom Holding ltd. and its subsidiaries held 580,800

treasury shares as of the balance sheet date.

Bonus certificates

ascom Holding ltd. has not issued any bonus certifi-

cates.

Authorised share capital/conditional share capital

ascom Holding ltd. had neither authorized nor condi-

tional share capital at 31 December 2007.

Changes in equity

the equity of ascom Holding ltd. has changed as fol-

lows:

since 6 april 2006, the share capital has amounted to

CHf 18,000,000, divided into 36,000,000 registered shares

with a par value of CHf 0.50 per share.

at the annual General meeting on 6 april 2006, the

company’s share capital was reduced from CHf 198,000,000

to CHf 18,000,000 (par value reduced to CHf 0.50). par

value of CHf 5 per registered share was repaid on 28 June

2006.

Limitations on transferability and nominee

registrations

in principle the articles of incorporation of ascomHolding�

ltd. contain no limitations on transferability.

the share registration guidelines are published on the�

company’s website (www.ascom.com/share_registra-

tion_guidelines.pdf).

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2007 CORpORate gOVeRnanCe

Every person recorded in the share register is regarded as�

a shareholder or beneficiary vis-à-vis the company.

a share register is maintained for registered shares in�

which the names and addresses of the owners and ben-

eficiaries are entered. Changes must be reported to the

company.

Entry in the share register requires proof of acquisition of�

title to the shares or of beneficiary status.

a purchaser of registered shares is entered in the share�

register upon request as a voting shareholder if he/she

expressly declares that he/she acquired the registered

shares in his/her own name and on his/her own account.

if the purchaser is not prepared to make such a declara-

tion, the board of Directors may refuse registration as a

voting shareholder.

after consulting the party involved, the company may�

delete entries in the share register if such entries occurred

in consequence of false statements by the purchaser. the

purchaser must be informed immediately of the dele-

tion.

admission of nominees is decided by the board of Direc-�

tors. no applications in this regard were submitted in

2007.

Options/convertible bonds

Options

ascom stock option plans are listed in the remunera-

tion report on pages 39 to 43.

Convertible bonds

ascom Holding ltd. has not issued any convertible

bonds.

in CHF 2007 2006 2005 2004

share capital 18,000,000 18,000,000 198,000,000 198,000,000

statutory re-
serves

12,501,000 9,820,000 6,233,000 1,021,000

free reserves 88,114,000 105,293,000 111,812,000 32,551,000

total 118,615,000 133,113,000 316,045,000 231,572,000
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Management transactions

the listing rules of the sWX swiss Exchange stipulate

a disclosure obligation in respect of management transac-

tions. to ensure compliance with these provisions, the

board of Directors has issued a new annex to the organi-

zational Guidelines. members of the board of Directors and

the Executive board as well as the General secretary are

required to make a disclosure to the company. in 2007 fif-

teen individual disclosures (see table) were submitted as

well as two collective reports. therefore it cannot be con-

cluded from the individual disclosure only, howmany shares

and derivatives are being held by the board of Directors and

the Executive board.

3. BoARD oF DIRectoRs

Board of Directors of Ascom Holding Ltd.

the board of Directors holds ultimate decision-making

authority and determines the strategic, organizational and

financial planning guidelines for the Group as well as the

company objectives. the board of Directors is responsible

for the overall direction as well as the supervision and con-

trol of the management. it sets guidelines for business

policies and ensures that it is regularly informed on the

course of business.

the primary tasks of the board of Directors under the

swiss Code of obligations and the articles of incorporation

of ascom Holding ltd. are:

overall management of the company and the Group,�

including setting the strategic direction, as well as

issuing directives as required

Defining the organization and management structure�

laying out the forms of accounting and financial control�

as well as financial planning

appointing and dismissing persons entrusted with the�

management and representation of the company and

determining who is entitled to sign on behalf of the

company

ultimate supervision of business activities�

Drawing up the annual report as well as preparing the�

annual General meeting and carrying out its resolutions

informing the courts in the event of excessive indebted-�

ness

passing resolutions on the financing of business,�

especially deciding on capital increases and ipos and the

consequent changes to the articles

passing resolutions on participations of major/strategic�

significance

Determining the compensation for members of the�

board of Directors and the Executive board.

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2007 CORpORate gOVeRnanCe

Transaction date Number

of shares

Type of transaction Amount

in CHF

2.2.2007 8,112 sale from ascom sop 2005 79,092

5.2.2007 37,357 sale 968,537

6.2.2007 6,738 sale from ascom sop 2005 50,535

6.2.2007 22,643 sale 566,804

7.2.2007 42,800 sale from ascom sop 2005 309,670

5.9.2007 100,000 purchase 1,243,900

6.9.2007 4,626 purchase 57,825

6.9.2007 7,000 purchase 87,150

6.9.2007 5,000 purchase 62,250

7.9.2007 5,374 purchase 67,175

10.9.2007 5,000 purchase 61,250

12.9.2007 3,000 purchase 37,050

1.10.2007 10,000 purchase 115,000

18.10.2007 70,000 purchase of call option 174,300

18.10.2007 100,000 purchase of call option 249,000
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Election and terms of office

since the 2006 annual General meeting, members of the�

board of Directors have been appointed by the annual

General meeting for a term of one year. prior to this, mem-

bers of the board of Directors served for three years. in

this context, one year is understood to be the period from

one annual General meeting to the next. members may

be re-elected.

members are elected or re-elected to the board of Direc-�

tors individually.

members of the board of Directors leave the board at the�

annual General meeting held in the year in which they

reach their 70th birthday.

Internal organization

the board of Directors is self-constituting and designates�

its own Chairman and secretary. the latter need not be a

member of the board.

the board of Directors is quorate when the majority of�

members are present. in the event of capital increases,

such a quorum is not required for decisions concerning

definition of the capital increase, amendment to the ar-

ticles of incorporation, or resolutions regarding the capital

increase report.

the board of Directors passes its resolutions by a major-�

ity of the votes cast. the Chairman holds the casting

vote.

resolutions may also be adopted by written consent to a�

proposal circulated by the Chairman among all members

and passed by a majority of all members of the board of

Directors.

minutes are kept of deliberations and resolutions, and are�

signed by the Chairman and the secretary.

members of the board of Directorsmay exercise a consult-�

ingmandate for the ascomGroup alongside their activity

on the board subject to the unanimous consent of the

board of Directors. there are no such consultingmandates

as at the balance sheet date.

Composition of the Board of Directors of

Ascom Holding Ltd.

in accordance with the articles of incorporation, the

board of Directors of ascom Holding ltd. consists of one or

morememberswho are elected for a one-year term of office

(amendment to the articles approved by the annual Gen-

eral meeting in 2006).

since the annual General meeting of ascom Holding

ltd. held on 16 april 2007, the board of Directors has con-

sisted of the following members as listed below.

Member since
AGM in

Elected for
term of office
until AGM in

Juhani anttila, Chairman 2001 2008

paul E. otth, Vice-Chairman 2002 2008

Dr Wolfgang Kalsbach 2002 2008

Dr J. t. bergqvist 2005 2008

Dr rolf a. meyer 2005 2008

Dr axel paeger 2005 2008

secretary to the board of Directors: Dr Daniel lack
(since 16 may 2001)

all members of the board of Directors are non-execu-

tive members.

Changes to the Board of Directors

pierre roy and adrian schmassmann decided not to

stand for re-election and stepped down from the board of

Directors at the 2007 annual General meeting.

Cross-involvement

there are no cross-involvements between the board

of Directors of ascomHolding ltd. and any other listed com-

pany.
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Juhani Anttila Chairman of the board of Directors of

ascom Holding ltd., berne

nationality: finnish | born 1954 | place of residence: baar,

switzerland | member since 2001 | Chairman of the board of

Directors since 14 may 2002 | Elected for period of office to aGm in 2008

> studied law at the university of Helsinki, finland (1976 bachelor’s

degree, 1978 master’s degree) > moved to switzerland in 1978

> 1981 – 1985 managing partner at Ca Corporate advisers, Zurich

> 1985 appointed managing Director of nokia GmbH, Zurich, and

responsible for various activities for the nokia Group > 1990 – 1995

Chairman of the Executive board of nokia (Deutschland) GmbH in

pforzheim > 1996 – 2002 CEo of swisslog Group > since 14 may 2002

Chairman of the board of Directors of ascom Holding ltd.

> 1 January 2003 – 31 may 2004 also CEo of the ascom Group

Paul E.Otth Vice-Chairman, Zurich

nationality: swiss | born 1943 | place of residence: Zurich,

switzerland | member since 2002 | Elected for period of office to

aGm in 2008

> Certified auditor > 1974 – 1988 Various management functions at

the Corange Group (boehringer mannheim) in switzerland and

abroad > 1988/89 partner and Executive board member of budliger

treuhand aG > 1989 activities for landis & Gyr, from 1994 Cfo and

Group Executive board member > 1996 – 1998 Cfo and Group

Executive board member of Elektrowatt, Zurich > 1998 – 2000 Cfo

and Division board member of siemens building technologies, Zurich

> 2000 – 2002 Cfo and Group Executive board member of unaxis

Holding, Zurich

Dr Wolfgang Kalsbach CEo of micronas semiconductor

Holding aG, Zurich

nationality: German | born 1954 | place of residence: bahlingen,

Germany | member since 2002 | Elected for period of office to aGm

in 2008

> 1983 Doctorate in physics > 1984 – 1990 Director of research &

Development, picture tube Division, itt industries GmbH, freiburg,

Germany > 1990 managing Director, luxor ab, sweden (nokia Group

subsidiary) > 1994 Chief operating officer itt intermetall (a unit of

itt industries GmbH, Germany) > since 1998 CEo of micronas

semiconductor Holding aG, Zurich

Dr J.T.Bergqvist business Consultant

nationality: finnish | born 1957 | place of residence: Helsinki, finland

| member since 2005 | Elected for period of office to aGm in 2008

> 1981 master of science (Helsinki university of technology,

finland) > 1987 Doctorate in Computer science from Helsinki

university of technology, finland > 1980 – 1987 Various positions as

a software specialist, project manager and export manager at nokia

Group, Helsinki > 1988 assistant professor at Helsinki school of

Economics > 1988 manager, overseas marketing, south East asia,

nokia Cellular systems, Kuala lumpur > 1990 area manager &

assistant Vice president, marketing, south Europe, nokia Cellular

systems, paris > 1993 area General manager, south Europe, nokia

telecommunications, paris > 1995 Vice president, Cellular transmis-

sion business, nokia telecommunications > 1997 senior Vice

president, radio access systems, nokia telecommunications > 2000

senior/Executive Vice president & General manager, nokia networks,

ip mobility networks > 2003/04 senior/Executive Vice president &

General manager, nokia networks, Global business units > 2001 –

2005 member of the strategy panel of the Group Executive board,

nokia Corporation > 2002 – 2005 member of Group Executive board,

nokia Corporation

BoARd of diReCtoRS
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Dr Rolf A. Meyer

nationality: swiss | born 1943 | place of residence: bäch, switzerland

| member since 2005 | Elected for period of office to aGm in 2008

> 1967 mba from the university of st.Gallen (lic. oec.HsG), majoring

in marketing > 1973 ph.D. in political science (Dr. rer. pol.), university

of basle > 1984 program for management Development (pmD),

Harvard business school, boston, ma, usa > 1967 market research/

marketing, bertschinger & Co. aG, Wohlen, switzerland > 1972

assistant to CEo, modern plastics Corp., long beach, Ca, usa

> 1973 financial analyst, Ciba-Geigy aG, basle > 1976 Group Company

Controller, Ciba-Geigy ltd., Johannesburg, south africa > 1979

Director of Central Control and Corporate systems, Ciba-Geigy aG,

basle > 1985 Vice president finance and information services, Ciba-

Geigy Corp. ltd. (usa), ardsley ny, usa > 1992 Chief financial officer

and member of the Group Executive Committee, Ciba-Geigy ltd.,

basle > 1996 Chairman and Delegate of the board, Ciba specialty

Chemicals, basle > 1998 – 2000 CEo and Chairman of the board, Ciba

specialty Chemicals, basle

Dr Axel Paeger CEo of amEos Holding aG, Zurich

nationality: German | born 1965 | place of residence: freienbach,

switzerland | member since 2005 | Elected for period of office to

aGm in 2008

> Dr med. (ludwig-maximilians university munich; Harvard

university, boston, ma, usa; university of london, Guy’s Hospital

medical school, london) > master of business administration (mba)/

master of business informatics (Erasmus university rotterdam school

of management, rotterdam; Case Western reserve university

Weatherhead school of management, Cleveland, oH, usa) > 1990

medical intern, medical Controlling, massachusetts General Hospital

(mGH), boston, ma, usa > 1992 associate partner, Health Care

Consultancy, (HCC), Cleveland, oH, usa > 1995 member of the board,

pacific Health Corporation inc., long beach, Ca, usa > 1999 Chief

managing officer, asklepios Kliniken, nidda, Germany > since 2003

Chief Executive officer of amEos Holding aG, Zurich

from left: Dr axel paeger, Juhani anttila, Dr J. t.bergqvist,
DrWolfgang Kalsbach, paul E.otth, Drrolf a. meyer
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Other mandates of the members of the Board

of Directors

Juhani anttila also acted as CEo of the ascom Group

concurrently from 1 January 2003 to 31 may 2004. none of

the other members of the board of Directors previously

worked for the ascom Group, nor does any member of the

board of Directors perform any permanentmanagement or

consultancy functions for important swiss or foreign inter-

est groups or hold any official positions or political offices.

Juhani anttila is a member of the board of Directors

of actelion ltd., allschwil. paul E. otth is a member of the

board of Directors of inficon Holding aG, bad ragaz (Vice-

Chairman) as well as swissquote Group Holding aG, Gland.

Dr rolf a. meyer is a member of the board of Directors of

ubs aG, Zurich and Dr J.t. bergqvist is Chairman of the

board of the Elektrobit Corporation, oulunsalo (finland) and

Chairman of the board of norvestia oyJ, Helsinki (finland).

the other members of the board of Directors of ascom

Holding ltd. do not hold positions on the boards of any

other exchange-listed companies.

paul E. otth is also a member of the board of Directors

of sbb aG, berne, and Chairman of the board of EaoHolding

aG, olten. Dr rolf a. meyer is also a member of the board

of Directors of DKsH Holding aG, Zurich, and Dr axel paeger

is Chairman of the board of Directors of amEos Holding aG,

Zurich. the other members of the board of Directors of as-

com Holding ltd. are not involved in any activities in gov-

erning or supervisory bodies of important public- or private-

law swiss or foreign corporations, institutions or founda-

tions.

Mode of operation of the Board of Directors

as a rule, the board of Directors meets on a monthly

basis. additional meetings or conference calls are held as

and when necessary. twenty-four meetings (including fif-

teen conference calls) were held in 2007. the average board

attendancewas 82.6%. the ordinarymeetings of the board

of Directors last a full day. the CEo, Cfo and othermembers

of the Executive board attend meetings of the board of

Directors as and when required. the board of Directors also

engages external consultants and specialized attorneys to

address specific topics.

Self-evaluation of the Board of Directors

since 2005 the board of Directors has carried out a

self-evaluation at year-end on the basis of a standardized

process using a comprehensive questionnaire. the results

are discussed at the first meeting in the new year, and any

measures necessary for improvements are discussed and

implemented as required.

Committees of the Board of Directors

to ensure the efficient and effective organization of

its duties, the board of Directors of ascom Holding ltd. has

set up the following committees whose primary role is to

preparematerials as a basis for board of Directors decisions

in specialized areas. the committees do not have decision

authority. all members of the board are entitled to attend

any meetings of these committees.
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Audit Committee

members:

paul e. otth (chairman) and Dr Rolf A. meyer

the audit Committee is composed of two non-execu-

tivemembers of the board of Directors and generallymeets

between four to six times a year, although the Chairman

may call meetings as often as business requires. four audit

Committeemeetingswere held in 2007, all of themattended

– at least for part of the time – by the external auditors.

the Chairman of the board of Directors also attended

two of these meetings. the CEo, Cfo and other members of

management attend the meetings as and when required.

representatives of internal audit are also involved. the

secretary to the board of Directors prepares meetings and

recordsminutes. the full board of Directors is kept informed

on a regular basis of the audit Committee’s activities and

also receives a copy of the minutes.

the audit Committee’s main activities are:

Evaluating processes in the company’s risk and control�

environment

supervising financial reporting�

Evaluating internal and external auditing�

Compensation & Nomination Committee

members:

Dr Wolfgang Kalsbach (chairman) and Dr Axel paeger

the Compensation Committee is composed of two

non-executive members of the board of Directors. the

Chairman callsmeetings as often as business requires. Eight

meetings were held in 2007. the CEo and the Head of Cor-

porate Human resources attend as and when required. the

secretary to the board of Directors prepares meetings and

recordsminutes. the full board of Directors is kept informed

on a regular basis of the Compensation and nomination

Committee’s activities.

one of the main activities performed by the Compen-

sation and nomination Committee is the formulation of

proposals for the full board of Directors with regard to:

the ascom Group’s salary policies�

Defining compensationmodels for members of the board�

of Directors and the Executive board

implementing and supervising stock option plans�

selecting candidates for election to the board of Direc-�

tors

reviewing candidates for appointment to the Executive�

board

annual appraisals of top management�

Strategy Committee

members:

Juhani Anttila (chairman) and Dr J.t. Bergqvist

the strategy Committee is composed of two non-ex-

ecutive members of the board of Directors. the Chairman

calls meetings as often as business requires. three meet-

ings were held in 2007. the CEo attends as and when re-

quired. the secretary to the board of Directors prepares

meetings and records minutes. the full board of Directors

is kept informed on a regular basis of the strategy Commit-

tee’s activities.

one of the main activities performed by the strategy

Committee is the formulation of proposals for the full board

of Directors with regard to:

portfolio of business activities, mergers & acquisitions,�

technology, structure of the ascom Group

financial planning, in particular cost structure and value�

enhancing measures

Areas of responsibility

the board of Directors has delegated the manage-

ment of ongoing business to the CEo who, together with

the Executive board as advisory body, is responsible for

overall management of the ascomGroup. a detailed defini-

tion of areas of responsibility is set down in the annex to

the organizational Guidelines.
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Information and control instruments in respect of the

Executive Board/management instruments

the ascom Group’s management information system

(mis) consists of management reporting and financial con-

solidation.

Each month the balance sheet, income statement, in-

coming orders, order backlog and employee headcount for

the individual companies are entered in the management

reporting system. this information is consolidated for the

various Divisions and for the Group as a whole, and com-

pared against the previous year’s figures and the current

budget. the Executive board discusses the results and the

action to be taken at monthly intervals.

financial consolidation in compliance with ifrs is

performed on a quarterly basis by all subsidiaries, which

are consolidated by segment, region and the Group as a

whole.

financial reports are submitted to the board of Direc-

tors on a monthly basis.

additional management instruments for themonitor-

ing ofmanagement processes include strategic planning for

several years (mtp), annual planning and quarterly fore-

casts. regular reports are presented to the board of Direc-

tors and the audit Committee on topics such as legal issues

and risk management. for information purposes, meetings

of the board of Directors and the audit Committee are at-

tended by the CEo and Cfo as well as, where necessary,

other members of management.

internal auditing is performed on a mandate basis by

Ernst & young according to the directives of the audit Com-

mittee. the internal audit plan is revised on an annual basis

in conjunctionwith the external auditors andmanagement,

and approved by the audit Committee. special audits are

also commissioned as and when required.

4. executIVe BoARD

The Executive Board of the Ascom Group

the Executive board is responsible for operational

management of the ascom Group within the framework of

the delegation of responsibilities. its duties are set down in

the organizational Guidelines and the corresponding an-

nexes.

Composition of the Ascom Executive Board

the ascom Group Executive board comprised the fol-

lowing members as of 1 January 2008:

Member of the

Executive Board

riet Cadonau CEo 20.8.2007

fritz mumenthaler Deputy CEo/General
manager Wireless
solutions

1.6.2005

alberto romaneschi Cfo 1.9.2006

Dr. fritz Gantert General manager
security solutions

1.10.2007

General secretary: Dr Daniel lack (since 1 January 2003)

Changes in the Executive Board

riet Cadonau was appointed as ascom’s new CEo on

20 august 2007. following the resignation of rudolf Hadorn

as of 15 february 2007, fritz mumenthaler provisionally as-

sumed overall responsibility as CEo ad interim. since 20

august 2007 he has held the office of Deputy CEo. Dr fritz

Gantert was elected to the Executive board on 1 october

2007 as the new General manager of the security solutions

Division, and he is a member of the Executive board.

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2007 CORpORate gOVeRnanCe
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Other mandates of the members of the Executive Board

riet Cadonau is a member of the board of Directors of

Kaba Holding aG, rümlang, and Dr fritz Gantert is amember

of the board of Directors of Eichhof Holding aG, lucerne.

the other members of the Executive board of ascom Hold-

ing ltd. do not hold positions on the boards of any other

exchange-listed companies.

riet Cadonau is a member of the board of Directors of

Griesser Holding aG, aadorf, and Dr fritz Gantert is a mem-

ber of the board of Directors of fraisa Holding aG, bellach,

and of Wandfluh Holding aG, frutigen. With the exception

of these, the members of the Executive board are not in-

volved in any activities in governing or supervisory bodies

of important public- and private-law swiss and foreign cor-

porations, institutions and foundations.

the members of the Executive board do not perform

any permanent management or consultancy functions for

important swiss or foreign interest groups or hold any of-

ficial positions or political offices.

Mode of operation of the Executive Board

the Executive board generally convenes on amonthly

basis. additional meetings or conference calls are held as

and when necessary. Eight meetings were held in 2007.

Management contracts

there are no management contracts within the ascom

Group.

Organization of the internal audit

the internal auditing mandate was awarded to Ernst &

young ltd, Zurich, effective 1 December 2002. fees are based

on the scope of services rendered. in 2007 Ernst & young per-

formed various individual audits and supported the company

with thedevelopmentof its internal control system(iCs). Ernst

&youngwerepaid remuneration totalingCHf 126,900 (includ-

ing expenses) for these services.

Business relationshipswith closely associated companies

and persons

no significant business transactions exist with closely

associated companies or persons.

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2007 CORpORate gOVeRnanCe
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Riet Cadonau CEo of the ascom Group

nationality: swiss | born 1961

> 1988 master of business administration from the university of

Zurich (lic.oec.publ.) > 1988 Executive assistant marketing, swiss

bank Corporation, basle > 1990 Various sales and management

positions including account Executive Credit suisse (worldwide),

Head of banking business unit, switzerland, ibm switzerland,

Zurich > 1998 member of the Executive board and Director of Global

services, ibm switzerland, Zurich > 2001 ascom Group, General

manager of integrated services Division; member of the Executive

board > 2002 General manager transport revenue Division, Deputy

CEo of the ascom Group > 2005 managing Director transport

revenue, aCs and 2006 also senior Vice president aCs Europe

> 2007 further education at insEaD (amp) in fontainebleau/paris

> since 20 august 2007 CEo of the ascom Group

Fritz Mumenthaler Deputy CEo & General manager

Wireless solutions

nationality: swiss | born 1958

> 1985 business administration degree at universities of neuchâtel

and berne (lic. rer.pol.) > 1985 manager Human resources, Credit

suisse > 1988 mba at insEaD, fontainebleau/paris > 1989 assistant

Director, swissphone telecommunications > 1992 project manager

Corporate Development, landis & Gyr > 1994 Head of marketing

Europe, later Head of Global marketing in the building automation

Division, siemens building technologies/landis & stäfa, landis & Gyr

building Control > 2000 Head of Zone Europe, member of the

management team of the Division, siemens building technologies,

building automation Division > since 1 June 2005 General manager

Wireless solutions and member of the Executive board of

the ascom Group > since 20 august 2007 also Deputy CEo

exeCutiVe BoARd
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Alberto Romaneschi Chief financial officer of the

ascom Group

nationality: swiss | born 1958

> 1982 studied business administration at the university of Zurich,

graduating with a lic. oec. publ. > 1983 – 1989 Various activities at

swiss bank Corporation in Zurich and new york > 1989 – 1991

responsible Corporate finance Group, treasury Department,

nestlé s.a., Vevey > 1991 – 1993 Head of finance Department/

treasurer nestlé Capital Corporation inc., stamford, Ct, usa > 1993 –

1999 Group treasurer, nestlé s.a., Vevey > 1999 – 2003 Cfo, Cereal

partners Worldwide, morges (nestlé/General mills Joint Venture)

> 2003 – 2005 Cfo, Dreyer’s Grand ice Cream Holdings, inc., and

nestlé ice Cream Company, llC, oakland and san ramon Ca, usa

> 2005 – 2006 Controller of Global reporting and Globally managed

businesses, nestec inc./nestlé Group, Vevey > since 1 september

2006 Cfo of the ascom Group and member of the Executive board

Dr Fritz Gantert General manager security solutions

nationality: swiss | born 1958

> 1977 – 1982 Degree in mechanical process engineering, construction

and industrial management, federal institute of technology (EtH),

Zurich, Department of mechanical Engineering > 1983 – 1987 swiss

federal institute of technology Zurich assistant at the institute of

industrial management before transferring to the stiftung bWi für

forschung und beratung (foundation for research and Consulting)

> 1987 ph.D (Dr. sc. techn.) EtH Zurich > 1988 – 1998 Various

management positions, ascom aG, berne, including Head of

Electronics production and Head of the paysys Division; latterly as

Head of ascom service automation switzerland > 1991 – 1992

Executive mba from the Graduate school of business administration,

Zurich > 1998 – 2001 member of the Group Executive management,

sarna Kunststoff Holding aG, sarnen and Head of the sarnatech

Division. subsequently set up the sarnamotive Division > 2001 –

2006 Delegate to the board of Directors, president and CEo of

schaffner Holding aG, luterbach, switzerland > since 1 october 2007

General manager security solutions and member of the Executive

board of the ascom Group

from left: Dr fritz Gantert, riet Cadonau, alberto romaneschi,
fritz mumenthaler
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Resolutions and elections

the annual General meeting has a quorum for transaction�

of business regardless of the number of votes represent-

ed.

unless otherwise stipulated by law, the annual General�

meeting adopts resolutions and carries out votes by an

absolute majority of valid votes cast. Elections are de-

cided by the relative majority of votes in a second bal-

lot.

the Chairman holds the casting vote.�

the board of Directors determines the voting procedure.�

shareholders representing registered shares with a par

value of CHf 100,000 are entitled to demand a written

ballot. this threshold corresponds to 0.5% of the votes.

Convocation of the Annual General Meeting

the annual General meeting is convened by the board of�

Directors or, if need be, by the auditors.

Convocation is effected no later than 20 days before the�

date of the meeting by a single announcement in the

company’s publication of record (the swiss official Ga-

zette of Commerce – soGC) and by letter to the share-

holders.

Agenda

in accordance with art. 699 para. 3 of the swiss Code of�

obligations, requests to place an item on the agendamust

be submitted to the board of Directors no later than 45

days before the date of the annual General meeting.

the invitation to submit agenda items is published in a�

single announcement in the company’s official publication

organ (the soGC).

5. compensAtIon, sHAReHolDInGs AnD loAns

all details of compensation, shareholdings and loans

are listed in the compensation report on pages 39 to 43 of

this annual report. this information can also be found in

note 7 of the financial statements of ascom Holding ltd.

(pages 111 and 113 of the annual report).

6. sHAReHolDeRs’ pARtIcIpAtIon RIGHts

Voting rights and protective rights

shareholders in swiss joint-stock companies have ex-

tensive participation and protective rights governed in prin-

ciple by the swiss Code of obligations (or) and supple-

mented by the respective company’s articles of incorpora-

tion. the main rights enjoyed by ascom Holding ltd.

shareholders are listed below.

Annual General Meeting

Voting rights and representation

Each share entitles the holder to one vote represented at�

the annual General meeting. there are no voting right

restrictions.

Each shareholdermay be represented by proxy at the an-�

nual General meeting by another shareholder who holds

a written power of attorney and is entered in the share

register as a voting shareholder.

sole proprietorships, partnerships and legal entities may�

be represented by authorized signatories, natural persons

by their legal representatives, and married persons by

their spouses, even if these representatives are not share-

holders.

the board of Directors makes the requisite arrangements�

to determine voting rights and to establish the results of

votes and elections.

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2007 CORpORate gOVeRnanCe
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Registration in the share register

all shareholders recorded in the share register as voting�

shareholders 10 days before the date of the annual Gen-

eral meeting are admitted to the meeting and entitled to

vote.

shareholders who dispose of their shares before the an-�

nual General meeting are no longer entitled to vote.

7. cHAnGe oF contRol AnD DeFensIVe meAsuRes

Obligation to submit a purchase offer

ascomHolding ltd.’s articles of incorporation contain

neither an opting-out nor an opting-up clause. anyonewho

acquires one-third (33 1/3%) of ascom Holding ltd.’s share

capital is obliged under the stock Exchange act (sEsta art.

32) to submit a public purchase offer for the remaining

shares.

Change of control clauses

no change of control clauses have been agreed in cov-

enants with members of the board of Directors.

the period of notice for senior management varies

between 12 and 24 months. in certain cases a change of

control can result in an employee concerned being granted

the right to be released with continued payment of salary

during the notice period or the right to a special payment

up to the amount of one year’s salary.

8. AuDItoRs

Group Auditors and Statutory Auditors

pricewaterhouseCoopers ltd., Zurich (formerly stG

Coopers & lybrand ltd.), have acted in the capacity of Group

auditors and statutory auditors since 1987. stefan räbsamen

has been head auditor since 2007. the statutory auditors

are appointed by the annual General meeting for a term of

one fiscal year.

Auditing fee

pricewaterhouseCoopers was paid compensation of

approximately CHf 996,000 for services in connection with

auditing the annual financial statements of ascom Holding

ltd. and the Group companies and the consolidated state-

ments of the ascom Group.

Additional fees

in 2007, compensation of approximately CHf 282,000

was paid for tax consulting and CHf 566,000 for other con-

sulting services (primarily in connection with the sale of

companies).

Monitoring and control instruments

the audit Committee as a committee of the board of

Directors evaluates the performance, fees and indepen-

dence of the statutory auditors each year. the statutory

auditors attended all audit Committee meetings held in

2007, at least for part of the time.

the audit Committee agrees the scope of the external

audit, audit plans and relevant processes with the statu-

tory auditors and discusses the results of the respective

audits with the external auditors. representatives of the

statutory auditors are regularly invited to meetings of the

audit Committee.



38

Electronic information tools

the ascom website (www.ascom.com) provides a

comprehensive overview of the company’s structure and

activities.

all media releases and presentations atmedia confer-

ences are available on the website (www.ascom.com). the

media releases may also be received by e-mail by subscrib-

ing to the news service on the website or via news feed.

the articles of incorporation of ascom Holding ltd.,

the organizational Guidelines, a current extract from the

Commercial register and the minutes of the last General

meeting of shareholders are available for downloading from

the website, under “Corporate Governance”.

Implementation of publication requirements under stock

exchange regulations

the disclosure obligations to be met in order to main-

tain ascom Holding ltd.’s listing in accordance with the

listing rules of sWX are specified in an annex to the orga-

nizational Guidelines.

regulations are in place governing the restrictions in

trading on the basis of insider knowledge that applies to

ascom’s employees and corporate bodies. a restriction in

trading applies in particular during a period of four weeks

prior to the regular analyts and media conferences or the

annual General meeting.

9. InFoRmAtIon polIcy

the board of Directors of ascom Holding ltd. and the

Executive board have undertaken to align their organiza-

tional structure with the latest corporate governance stan-

dards.

the board of Directors has also issued a directive to

implement the publication requirements in effect under

stock exchange regulations.

ascom’s information policy is based on commitment

to a high degree of transparency and equal treatment of all

stakeholder groups. Corporate communications come under

the remit of the General secretary. ascom Holding ltd. pro-

vides a wide range of communication tools to keep its

shareholders, the media, analysts and other stakeholder

groups informed:

Publications

annual report�

Half-year report�

the official publication organ of ascomHolding ltd. is the�

swiss official Gazette of Commerce (soGC)

Events

annual media Conference and Half-yearmedia Conference�

for media representatives and analysts

ad-hoc media conferences�

investor & media Day�

annual General meeting of shareholders�

roadshows for institutional investors�

Media releases

in accordance with the provisions of the sWX swiss

Exchange, ascom publishes information on ad hoc publicity

rules. furthermore, ascom publishes ascommedia releases

on significant business activities and on its products and

services.

Ascom AnnuAl RepoRt 2007 CORpORate gOVeRnanCe
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Ascom operates in a competitive environment. In

order to be successful over the long-term and be seen as

an attractive employer for specialists and highly qualified

staff, Ascom offers attractive compensation, based on a

performance-oriented compensation system.

In this compensation report Ascom provides infor-

mation on the compensation it has paid. this report is an

integral part of the Annual Report and will be presented

to the 2008 Annual General meeting for approval.

Content and method of determining compensation and

stock option plans

Board of Directors

fees for members of the board of Directors are set

down in the Compensation Guidelines (as an annex to the

organizational Guidelines). the fee for a regularmember of

the board of Directors is CHf 100,000 per annum since 15

april 2007. the Chairman of the board of Directors receives

a basic fee of CHf 240,000 per annum. the Vice-Chairman

of the board of Directors, who is also Chairman of the audit

Committee, receives a fee of CHf 160,000 per annum.

Executive Board

the compensation packages for all members of the

Executive board are set by the full board of Directors on the

recommendation of the Compensation & nomination Com-

mittee. the Compensation & nomination Committee is

made up exclusively of independent members of the board

of Directors. Eachmember’s total compensation consists of

a basic salary and a performance-related bonus as a vari-

able salary component. the performance-related bonus is

linked to the attainment of clearly measurable targets set

at the beginning of the year. the individual incentive tar-

gets used to determine the variable salary component (bo-

nus calculation) for themembers of the Executive board are

defined annually by the full board of Directors at the re-

quest of the Compensation & nomination Committee. on

achieving the defined targets, the respectivemember of the

Executive board receives a predetermined percentage of his

basic salary as a bonus. in cases where the targets set in

the member’s respective area of responsibility are exceed-

ed – and the Group targets are also achieved – a sum up to

a maximum of double the bonus may be paid.

in addition, since 2003 the board of Directors has ap-

proved an option program for senior management on an

annual basis, with a view to rewarding behavior geared to-

wards medium and long-term success with compensation

elements that are only available at a later point in time. the

allocation of options is made on the basis of stock option

plans set up each year and agreed inwriting. the conditions

regarding exercising are defined on allocation of the op-

tions, with no subsequent changes being made and in par-

ticular no re-pricing. the strike price corresponds at least to

the market price on the exercise date or to the average

market price over a defined number of trading days before

this date. the management of the ascom stock option

plans is the responsibility of the board of Directors.

in 2007, the members of the Executive board received

options worth 20% of the total of their basic salaries and

target bonuses under the ascom stock option plan 2007/i.

the value of the optionswas determined by an independent

third party. in addition, in autumn 2007 the board of Direc-

tors issued an ascom stock option plan 2007/ii to 26 mem-

bers of ascom’s seniormanagement including themembers

of the Executive board as a voluntary allocation.

RemuneRAtion RepoRt
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Compensation for acting members of governing bodies

the following compensations were paid in 2007:

Board of Directors�

themembers of the board of Directors were paid com-

pensation totaling CHf 883,520 in 2007. Within the context

of the company’s restructuring, the Chairman of the board

of Directors received a one time payment of CHf 60,000 in

addition to his fee, due to the substantial amount of addi-

tional work performed.

CHF

Juhani anttila, Chairman 300 ,000

paul E. otth, Vice-Chairman 160,000

Dr J.t. bergqvist 94,100

Dr Wolfgang Kalsbach 94,100

Dr rolf a. meyer 94,100

Dr axel paeger 94,100

pierre roy (until 16.4.2007) 23,560

adrian schmassmann (until 16.4.2007) 23,560

no members of the board of Directors received any

additional payments as defined by art. 663b bis of the

swiss Code of obligations, nor were any payments made to

parties closely linked to the board of Directors.

nomembers of the board of Directors or parties close-

ly linked to themnor formermembers of the board of Direc-

tors received any loans from the company.

Executive Board�

the total of five members active in the Executive

board in fiscal 2007 were paid a total of CHf 3,524,000. the

total amount includes employer’s contributions to the oc-

cupational pension scheme totaling CHf 126,000. it also

includes provisions of CHf 441,000 in respect of the bonus

payments of the four Executive board members currently

in office. for rudolf Hadorn, who left the board in the course

of the year, the total amount of CHf 106,000 contained in

this sum includes compensation during his term of office

(including employer’s contributions to the occupational

pension scheme on a pro rata basis). Executive boardmem-

bers’ bonus claims for 2007 will be calculated and paid in

april 2008 after approval of the annual financial state-

ments. the criteria governing payment of the 2007 bonus

aremeasurable and contractually regulated. in addition, the

members of the Executive board were allocated a total of

95,400 options under the ascom stock option plan 2007/i

and a total of 156,000 options under ascom stock option

plan 2007/ii. these options are valued at a total of

CHf 1,256,000, based on the value at the time they were

granted.

the highest total compensation within the Executive

board was paid to the Deputy CEo and General manager

Wireless solutions. the total amount for 2007 came to CHf

1,474,000. this figure includes special expenses on the basis

of the expat agreement for sweden (“tax neutralization”)

in the amount of CHf 364,000 and provisions for the bonus

claims for fiscal 2007. the Deputy CEo was also allocated

34,000 options under the ascom stock option plan 2007/i

and 35,500 options under the ascom stock option plan

2007/ii. these options are valued at a total of CHf 378,000,

based on the value at the time they were granted.
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no members of the Executive board received any ad-

ditional payments as defined by art. 663b bis of the swiss

Code of obligations, nor were any payments made to par-

ties closely linked to the Executive board.

no members of the Executive board or parties closely

linked to them received any loans from the company.

Former members of the Executive Board�

former member of the Executive board thomas Casa-

ta was paid a total of CHf 230,000 in 2007 in compliance

with contractual commitments, thereby settling all claims.

following his retirement from the Executive board on 15

february 2007, rudolf Hadorn was paid a total of CHf

786,000 in compliance with contractual commitments.

no former members of the Executive board or parties

closely linked to them received any additional payments or

loans from the company.

Share allotment in the year under review

ascom Holding ltd. allotted no shares in 2007.

Share ownership

the number of ascom Holding ltd. shares held as of

31 December 2007 was:

all members of the board of Directors and parties closely�

linked to such persons, in toto: 102,500 shares.

Shares

Juhani anttila, Chairman 100,000

paul E. otth, Vice-Chairman 0

Dr J. t. bergqvist 0

Dr Wolfgang Kalsbach 0

Dr rolf a. meyer 2,500

Dr axel paeger 0

no members of the board of Directors or parties closely�

linked to them hold any conversion or option rights.

all members of the Executive board and parties closely�

linked to such persons, in toto: 43,000 shares and 367,300

options (of which 297,300 employee options).

CHF Basic salary Bonus Options1 Pension

contributions

Miscellaneous Total

Deputy CEo 543,000 144,000 378,000 45,000 364,0002 1,474,000

other members 794,000 297,000 878,000 81,000 0 2,050,000

total for Executive board 1,337,000 441,000 1,256,000 126,000 364,000 3,524,000

1Fair value of the options granted in 2007, calculated at the time they were granted using a binomial model
2costs for international assignment in sweden (tax neutralization)
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Options

Ascom Stock Option Plan 2004

in accordancewith the resolution passed by the board

of Directors on 2 July 2004, a total of 99,000 options were

issued to seven members of ascom’s senior management

on 1 July 2004, each option entitling the holder to purchase

one share with a nominal value of CHf 5.50. the strike price

is CHf 14.21.

the options have a life of four years and are subject

both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance of the smi in-

dex within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking period

(one third of the options can be exercised after one year).

at the timewhen the options are exercised, the participants

must also have a valid employment contract with anascom

company (truncation clause).

the board of Directors resolved on 30 June 2006 to

lower the strike price by CHf 5 for all outstanding options

with immediate effect due to the capital reduction of CHf

5 per share. the strike price for all options with regard to

the ascom stock option plan 2004 was fixed at CHf 9.21.

in 2007, a total of 24,000 options were exercised out

of 28,000 options outstanding. there are 4,000 options still

outstanding.

Ascom Stock Option Plan 2005

in accordancewith the resolution passed by the board

of Directors on 1 march 2005 and 27 June 2005, a total of

150,200 options were issued to seven members of ascom’s

senior management on 1 february 2005 and 1 July 2005

respectively, each option entitling the holder to purchase

one share with a nominal value of CHf 5.50. the strike price

is CHf 22.25. the options have a life of four years and are

subject both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance of the

smi index within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking

period to 31 January 2007.

the board of Directors resolved on 30 June 2006 to

lower the strike price by CHf 5 for all outstanding options

with immediate effect due to the capital reduction of CHf

5 per share. the strike price for all options with regard to

the ascom stock option plan 2005 was fixed at CHf 17.25.

in 2007, a total of 73,600 options were exercised out

of 88,800 options outstanding. there are 15,200 options still

outstanding.

Number Shares Options Employee
options
(exercis-
able) 1

Employee
options

(not exercis-
able) 1

riet Cadonau, CEo 25,000 70,0002 0 108,500

fritz mumenthaler,
Deputy CEo & Gm Ws

0 0 0 91,000

Dr. fritz Gantert,
Gm seso

18,000 0 0 35,500

alberto romaneschi,
Cfo

0 0 0 62,300

total Executive board 43,000 70,000 0 297,300

1In accordance with the provisions of Ascom stock option plans 2006, 2007/I and 2007/II
2Ratio: 5:1
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Ascom Stock Option Plan 2006

in accordancewith the resolution passed by the board

of Directors on 6 april 2006 and 29 august 2006 a total of

135,400 options were issued to four members of ascom’s

seniormanagement on 1march 2006 and 1 september 2006

respectively, each option entitling the holder to purchase

one share with a nominal value of CHf 5.50 and CHf 0.50

respectively. the strike price was CHf 19.75 and CHf 14.75

respectively.

the options have a life of four years and are subject

both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance of the smi in-

dex within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking period

to 28 february 2008.

the board of Directors resolved on 30 June 2006 to

lower the strike price by CHf 5 for all outstanding options

with immediate effect due to the capital reduction of CHf

5 per share. the strike price for all options with regard to

the ascom stock option plan 2006 was fixed at CHf 14.75.

no options were exercised during 2007. there are thus

106,200 options still outstanding.

Ascom Stock Option Plan 2007/I

in accordancewith the resolution passed by the board

of Directors on 5 march 2007 a total of 95,400 options were

issued to three members of ascom’s senior management

on 5 march 2007 and 14 may 2007 respectively, each option

entitling the holder to purchase one share with a nominal

value of CHf 0.50. the strike price is CHf 19.85.

the options have a life of four years and are subject

both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance of the smi in-

dex within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking period

to 4 march 2009.

all 95,400 options are still outstanding.

Ascom Stock Option Plan 2007/II

in accordancewith the resolution passed by the board

of Directors on 25 september 2007 a total of 360,000 op-

tions were issued to 26 members of ascom’s senior man-

agement on 1 october 2007, each option entitling the hold-

er to purchase one share with a nominal value of CHf 0.50.

the strike price is CHf 13.00.

the options have a life of four years and are subject

both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance of the smi in-

dex within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking period

(one third of the options can be exercised after one year).

all 360,000 options are still outstanding.

Options held as of 31 December 2007:

the 580,800 options issued and not yet exercised, nor

expired as of 31 December 2007 correspond to 1.61% of the

total share capital.

Issue date Duration

in years

Strike price

CHF

Exercised

options

Expired

options

Retained

options

1.7.2004 4 9.21 79,000 16,000 4,000

1.2.2005 4 17.25 73,600 61,400 15,200

1.3.2006 4 14.75 0 29,200 106,200

5.3.2007 4 19.85 0 0 95,400

1.10.2007 4 13.00 0 0 360,000
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conSolidated Balance Sheet

CHFm Notes 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Assets Property, plant and equipment 4, 33 37.2 43.7

Intangible assets 5 17.0 28.8

Deferred tax assets 6 3.7 5.3

Financial assets 7 10.1 10.7

Other non-current assets 11 2.0 –

Non-current assets 70.0 88.5

Inventories and work in process 9 46.0 51.5

Trade receivables 10 79.1 107.2

Other current assets 11 62.1 61.6

Financial assets held for trading purposes 12 0.6 0.6

Cash and cash equivalents 13 223.0 165.6

410.8 386.5

Assets held for sale 33 39.8 17.8

Current assets 450.6 404.3

total assets 41 520.6 492.8

LiAbiLities

ANd-

sHAre-

HoLders’

equity

Share capital 15 18.0 18.0

Reserves 15 9.4 10.4

Retained earnings 143.5 191.6

170.9 220.0

Minority interests 16 0.1 0.1

equity 171.0 220.1

Deferred tax liabilities 6 3.1 4.3

Retirement benefit obligations 18 15.8 18.0

Provisions 19 28.8 20.4

Other liabilities 20 1.6 3.8

Long-term liabilities 49.3 46.5

Trade payables 32.5 41.3

Borrowings 17 – 0.1

Provisions 19 39.7 21.0

Liabilities for income taxes 21 3.6 6.7

Other liabilities 22 178.0 129.3

253.8 198.4

Liabilities in relation to assets held for sale 33 46.5 27.8

short-term liabilities 300.3 226.2

total liabilities 41 349.6 272.7

total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 520.6 492.8

The notes on pages 51 to 103 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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conSolidated income Statement

CHFm Notes 2007 2006

Revenue 1 23, 41 490.5 474.9

Cost of goods sold (313.4) (296.5)

Gross profit 177.1 178.4

Marketing and distribution (104.4) (91.4)

Research and development (33.7) (27.3)

Administration (38.9) (26.1)

operating result 2 2, 41 0.1 33.6

Amortization and impairment of intangible assets 5 (8.9) (1.4)

Other income/(expenses), net 24 (7.3) 2.7

(Loss)/profit before financial income and taxes (ebit) 2, 41 (16.1) 34.9

Financial income 25 5.3 3.4

Financial expenses 25 (3.0) (2.7)

Net financial income/(expenses) 25 2.3 0.7

(Loss)/profit before income taxes (13.8) 35.6

Income taxes 26 (6.8) 0.4

(Loss)/profit from continuing operations (20.6) 36.0

Loss from discontinued operations 33 (27.5) (18.9)

Group (loss)/profit (48.1) 17.1

1 the comparative figure includes the revenue of the activities of manufacturing France of cHF 23.8 million which was sold on 30 september 2006.
2 Before amortization of intangible assets and other (expenses)/income

Allocation of Group (loss)/profit

Shareholders of the Holding company (48.1) 17.1

earnings per share for (loss)/profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company in CHF

Group basic 29 (1.35) 0.48

Continuing operations basic (0.58) 1.01

Group diluted 29 (1.35) 0.48

Continuing operations diluted (0.58) 1.01

The notes on pages 51 to 103 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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conSolidated caSh Flow Statement

CHFm Notes 2007 2006

Cash flow from operating activities

Group (loss)/profit (48.1) 17.1

Adjustments for:

– Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 4 9.9 11.1

– Amortization and impairment of intangible assets 5 13.4 3.5

Increase in provisions 51.0 18.2

Release of provisions (6.8) (6.9)

Loss/(profit)from sale of

– Property, plant and equipment 24 0.8 (1.2)

– Subsidiaries, associated companies and business units – 2.6

Expense option program 32 0.9 1.0

Other (income)/expenses 24, 33 (1.1) 4.9

Income tax expenses 26 5.9 0.9

Financial expenses, net 25, 33 (1.9) 0.2

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in net working capital 24.0 51.4

Changes in inventory and work in process 0.5 (6.6)

Changes in trade receivables 18.2 6.0

Changes in trade payables (5.8) (1.2)

Other items excluding cash 50.2 (4.6)

Cash flow from operating activities 87.1 45.0

Paid restructuring expenses (4.4) (8.5)

Paid warranty costs and guarantees (5.4) (5.4)

Paid other accrued costs (5.5) (3.0)

Other income/(expenses) 24, 33 0.3 (4.9)

Interest paid – (0.5)

Interest received 4.8 3.3

Other financial (income)/expenses (1.7) (2.1)

Income tax paid (9.3) (9.0)

Net cash flow from operating activities 65.9 14.9

The notes on pages 51 to 103 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CHFm Notes 2007 2006

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (6.7) (13.5)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4, 24 3.1 37.6

Purchase of intangible assets 5 (1.6) (2.3)

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 5 – 0.1

Proceeds from sale of consolidated companies and business units – 38.1

Sale of assets under finance lease agreements 11 (2.0) –

Repayments of loans 0.9 –

Net cash flow from investing activities (6.3) 60.0

Cash flow from financing activities

Decrease in long-term borrowings – (0.6)

Decrease in short-term borrowings – (1.2)

Increase in short-term borrowings – 0.9

Reduction of nominal share capital – (178.5)

Dividends paid to company’s shareholders – (10.1)

Exercise and sale of own shares 15 1.5 0.4

Purchase of own shares 15 (4.2) (0.8)

Net cash flow from financing activities (2.7) (189.9)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 56.9 (115.0)

Unrestricted cash at beginning of year 165.6 278.9

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 0.5 1.7

unrestricted cash at end of year 13 223.0 165.6

The notes on pages 51 to 103 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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conSolidated Statement oF changeS in equity

equity attributable to shareholders of the Holding company

CHFm share
capital

own
shares

Legal and
special

reserves

other
reserves

(Accumu-
lated loss)/
retained
earnings

translation
adjustments

Minority
interests

total

balance at 31.12.2005 restated 1 198.0 (7.4) 21.9 1.1 184.7 (13.1) 0.1 385.3

Currency translation adjustments – – – – – 3.9 – 3.9

Group profit – – – – 17.1 – – 17.1

total recognized income
and expenses

21.0

Costs of share-based payment – – – 1.0 – – – 1.0

Capital redemption (180.0) 1.6 – – (0.1) – – (178.5)

Dividend payment – – – – (10.1) – – (10.1)

Purchase of own shares – (0.8) – – – – – (0.8)

Sale of own shares – 0.4 – – – – – 0.4

Exercised options – 1.8 – – – – – 1.8

balance at 31.12.2006 18.0 (4.4) 21.9 2.1 191.6 (9.2) 0.1 220.1

Currency translation adjustments – – – – – 0.8 – 0.8

Group loss – – – – (48.1) – – (48.1)

total recognized income
and expenses

(47.3)

Costs of share-based payment – – – 0.9 – – – 0.9

Purchase of own shares – (4.2) – – – – – (4.2)

Exercised options – 1.5 – – – – – 1.5

balance at 31.12.2007 18.0 (7.1) 21.9 3.0 143.5 (8.4) 0.1 171.0

1please refer to note 34 on the retrospective restatement of prior year the balances

The notes on pages 51 to 103 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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1. summAry oF tHe GenerAl Group AccountinG policies

1.1 General information

The Ascom consolidated financial statements are drawn up in Swiss francs (CHF) on the basis of

the individual Group company accounts. These are based on historical costs except for the revaluation

of certain financial assets at market values (more specifically – financial assets and liabilities (includ-

ing derivatives) at fair value through profit and loss), and are prepared in accordance with Interna-

tional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) including the standards and interpretation guidelines issued

by the International Accounting Standards Board as well as the valuation and accounting policies

described below. These policies have been consistently applied.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain criti-

cal accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of ap-

plying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity,

or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements,

are disclosed in Note 1.23.

The closing date for the Group and the individual companies is 31 December. Individual items of

information with respect to the previous year have been reclassified in order to allow comparability

with the data presented for the year under review. The main reclassifications have been made in the

segment reporting and in the statement on discontinued operations due to changes in the scope of

consolidation and/or allocations as well as additional disclosure of provisions relating to onerous

contracts.

New accounting standards and iFriC interpretations

a) Amendments to published standards effective in 2007:

IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and the complementary Amendment to IAS 1, Presentation�

of Financial Statements – Capital Disclosures, introduces new disclosures relating to financial instru-

ments to improve the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative information about exposure to risks

arising from financial instruments, including specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquid-

ity risk, and market risk, including sensitivity analysis for market risk. Adoption of this amendment

only impacts the format and extent of disclosures presented in the accounts.

b) Standards early adopted by the Group in 2007:

No standards have been early adopted by the Group in 2007.�

c) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2007 but having no significant impact on

the present annual financial statements:

The following standards, amendments and interpretations aremandatory for accounting periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2007 but have had no significant impact on the present annual finan-

cial statements:

IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2; and�

IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment.�

noteS to the conSolidated Financial StatementS
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d) Standards and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group:

The following interpretations to existing standards have been published that are mandatory for

the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 that the Group has not early

adopted:

IFRS 2 (amended) (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009) deals with�

twomatters. The standard clarifies that vesting conditions can be service conditions and performance

conditions only. Other features of share-based payment are not vesting conditions. It also specifies

that all cancellations, whether by the entity or by other parties, should receive the same accounting

treatment;

IFRS 3 (revised), ‘Business combinations’ requires significant changes in the application of the acqui-�

sition method to business combinations. All payments to purchase a business are to be recorded at

fair value at the acquisition date, with some contingent payments subsequently remeasured at fair

value through profit or loss. Goodwill may be calculated based on the parent’s share of net assets

or it may also include goodwill related to theminority interest. All transaction costs will be expensed.

The standard is applicable to business combinations occurring in accounting periods beginning on

or after 1 July 2009, with earlier application permitted. The change may have a significant impact on

the accounting for future business combinations;

IFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009). This�

standard requires companies to determine their segments on the basis of the information that is

made available to the chief operating decision maker in order to manage the business;

IAS 23 (amended), Borrowing Costs (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January�

2009). The revised standard continues the convergence project with US GAAP. Themain change from

the previous standard is the removal of the option to recognise borrowing costs on qualifying assets

as an expense. Under the revised standard, capitalisation of such costs is now required;

IAS 27 (amended) (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009) requires the�

effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no change

in control. They will no longer result in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also specifies the

accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is remeasured to fair value and

a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, total comprehensive income must be attrib-

uted to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance. These changes may impact the accounting for future

transactions with non-controlling interest formerly minority interest;

IFRIC 11, Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective for annual periods beginning on or after�

1 March 2007). This pronouncement provides further detailed guidance in connection with share-

based payments to employees. Management is currently studying the effects that implementation

of this standard will have on Ascom’s financial reporting; and

IFRIC 14, IAS 19, The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their inter-�

action (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008). IFRIC 14 provides guidance

on assessing the limit in IAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that can be recognized as an asset. It

also explains how the pension asset or liability may be affected by the statutory and contractual

minimum funding requirement. The group will apply IFRIC 14 from 1 January 2008 and Management

is currently studying the effects that implementation of this standard will have on Ascom’s financial

reporting.
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e) Interpretations to existing standards effective in 2007 but not relevant for the Group’s opera-

tions:

The following interpretations to existing standards have been published that are mandatory for

the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007 or later periods but are not rel-

evant for the Group’s operations:

IFRS 4, Insurance contracts;�

IFRIC 7, Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary�

Economies (effective from 1 March 2006). This pronouncement is not relevant for the Group’s op-

erations; and

IFRIC 9, Reassessment of embedded derivatives (effective for annual periods beginning on or after�

1 June 2006). This pronouncement is not relevant for the Group’s operations.

f) Interpretations to existing standards not yet effective in 2007 and not relevant for the Group’s

operations:

IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after�

1 January 2008). This pronouncement is not relevant for Ascom; and

IFRIC 13, Customer loyalty programs (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008).�

This pronouncement is not relevant for Ascom.

1.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements cover Ascom Holding Ltd. and all companies over which

the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies or which it otherwise controls.

As a rule, control is assumed if Ascom holds more than half of the voting rights. The list of the sig-

nificant group companies is included under Note 42. The purchase method of accounting is used to

account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the

fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date

of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabil-

ities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair

values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the

cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is

recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the sub-

sidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement. Percentages in capital

correspond to percentages in voting rights held. Group companies are included in the consolidated

financial statements in their entirety. Minority interests in equity and the net income of Group com-

panies are included in the equity and net income respectively, and are disclosed separately (eco-

nomic entity approach). Intercompany transactions and balances, including intercompany profits, are

eliminated on consolidation. Investments in companies in which the Ascom Group is able to exercise

significant influence are associated companies (as a rule, ownership between 20% and 50%) and are

accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter

for the post-acquisition change in Ascom’s share of the net assets of the investee. Companies acquired

or disposed of during the year are consolidated or de-consolidated from the date on which control is

transferred to the Group or from the date the control ceases. Profits or losses from disposals are

charged to income.
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1.3 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the

currency of the primary economic environment inwhich the entity operates (“the functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Swiss francs (CHF), which is the Group’s func-

tional and presentation currency.

Income statements of foreign entities are translated into the Group’s presentation currency at

average exchange rates for the year. The balance sheets are translated at the exchange rates prevail-

ing on 31 December. Exchange differences arising from the re-conversion of the net investment in

subsidiaries and associated undertakings in foreign functional currencies are taken to translation

adjustments in equity. Also taken to equity are differences from the retranslation of borrowings that

hedge such investments in foreign group companies. Upon disposal of a foreign operation (e.g. through

sale, liquidation or repayments of the share capital of all, or a part of that entity), accumulated ex-

change differences are recognized in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Foreign currency translation

in CHF iso-code unit 31.12.
2007

Average
2007

31.12.
2006

Average
2006

US dollar USD 1 1.126 1.203 1.219 1.263

Pound sterling GBP 1 2.248 2.411 2.397 2.302

Euro EUR 1 1.657 1.639 1.607 1.571

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as

assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the rate prevailing on the balance sheet

date. Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the

transaction date. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the

conversion of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the

income statement. Such balances are converted at year-end exchange rates.

1.4 derivative financial instruments

All derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value including transaction

costs. All purchases and sales are recognized on the settlement date. Subsequently, derivative finan-

cial instruments are accounted for at market value on a regular basis. No hedge accounting is ap-

plied.

All changes in market value of the financial instruments are recorded in net financial income/

(expenses) of the corresponding reporting period. Derivative financial instruments comprise forward

exchange contracts. Forwards are used to hedge currency risks.
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at purchase or manufacturing cost (i.e. historical cost)

less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

items acquired. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group holds the risks and rewards

incident to ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the inception

of the lease at the lower of the fair market value of the leased property or the present value of the

lease payments. Each leasing payment is allocated to the liability and finance charges in order to

achieve a constant interest rate on the outstanding lease liability. The corresponding lease obligations

are included in the short-term and long-term liabilities. The interest portion of the lease payments is

charged to the income statement over the lease period. Property, plant and equipment acquired under

finance leases are depreciated over the lease period or, if shorter, the useful life of the asset. Land is

valued at cost and is not depreciated. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives as shown in the following table:

useful life in years

Buildings 20–40

Installations and transport systems 7–10

Production equipment, measuring and test equipment, IT hardware, furniture 3–5

Tools 3

Rental equipment Duration of rental contract

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each

balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will

flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the re-

placed part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment are eliminated from the balance sheet from their date

of disposal, or written off when no further economic benefit can be expected from their use. All gains

or losses arising from the disposal of such items are included in the income statement. Where the

carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is higher than the recoverable amount, these assets

are depreciated to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair

value less costs to sell and value in use. Land and/or buildings that are held for appreciation of value

or for rental income are defined as investment properties. This real estate is carried at acquisition cost

less any necessary depreciation.
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1.6 intangible assets

Licenses, patents, trademarks, software and other similar rights are recorded at cost less accu-

mulated amortization. The amortization charge is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period

of its estimated useful economic life up to a maximum of 5 years or in proportion to the estimated

usage. Purchased goodwill (the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets ac-

quired) is recorded as an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life that is tested for impairment

at least once a year. For the purposes of testing for impairment, the goodwill was allocated to the

corresponding cash generating units.

Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

1.7 Financial assets/investments

Financial assets are classified as “Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss”, “Held-to-maturity investments”, “Loans and receivables” and “Financial assets available for

sale”.

a) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are either held for trading

purposes or designated as such. Financial investments held for trading are purchased with the inten-

tion of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in the price. Derivatives are classified as held

for trading. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

b) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets with a fixed term, which the Group has the

intention and ability to hold to maturity.

c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities

greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans

and receivables are classified as trade receivables and financial assets in the balance sheet.

d) Financial assets available for sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial instruments that are either allo-

cated to this category or do not belong to any other category. They are included in non-current assets

unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet

date.

All financial instruments are recorded initially at fair value including transaction costs. All pur-

chases and sales are recognized on the settlement date, i.e. on the day of the transfer of the asset.

After initial recognition, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded

at market value and changes in market value are charged to financial income/(expenses) in the ap-

propriate reporting period. The fair value of exchange-listed financial instruments is based on available

stock exchange prices. If a financial instrument is not traded on an activemarket, alternative valuation

methods are used based on recent transactions between willing and independent third parties or

discounted cash flow analysis or similar.
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Following initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial investments are recorded at their amor-

tized cost value using the effective interest method (amortized costs). Interest is recognized in the

income statement as part of other income. Following initial recognition, available-for-sale financial

investments are recognized at fair market value and changes in value are charged to equity. Permanent

impairments are recognized in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instru-

ments are recognised in the income statement as part of other incomewhen the Group’s right to receive

payments is established.

1.8 inventories and work in process

Inventories are stated at the lower of purchase costs/manufacturing costs or net realizable val-

ue. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the normal course of business, less estimated

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Manufacturing costs include

direct material and production costs as well as material and production overheads. The costs are de-

termined using the weighted average method.

Value adjustments are made for obsolete and slow-moving items. Inventories held for the fulfil-

ment of long-term delivery commitments are valued according to the delivery commitment. Project

contracts are recognized according to the stage of completion of the contract (POC method) (cf. also

Note 1.18), and the respective effect is recognized in the income statement. Customer prepayments

are shown separately as a liability. Provisions aremade to cover all anticipated losses, as soon as these

are identified.

1.9 trade receivables

Trade receivables are carried at the invoiced amount less provision for impairment. A provision

for impairment is recognized when it becomes obvious that the originally invoiced amount is not

fully realizable. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days

overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision

is determined by reference to the originally invoiced amount less the amount of the expected realisa-

tion. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the

loss is recorded in the income statement within “marketing and distribution costs”.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade

receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against ’marketing

and distribution costs’ in the income statement.

1.10 other current assets

Prepayments and accrued income are stated at cost or net realizable value.
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1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-

term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings on the balance sheet. Cash, which is restricted for at

least 12 months, is recognized as a financial asset.

1.12 research and development costs

All research costs are charged immediately to income. Costs incurred on development projects

(relating to the design and testing of new or improved products) are recognized as intangible assets

when the following criteria are fulfilled:

a) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale

b) management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it

c) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset

d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits

e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset are available

f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be reliably mea-

sured

The capitalized assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the

respective product. Development costs that cannot be capitalized are charged to income in the period

in which they occur. Property, plant and equipment used for research and development activities are

capitalized in the same way as other property, plant and equipment, and amortized on a straight-line

basis over their useful lives.

1.13 income taxes

Income taxes are recorded based on the period to which they properly relate. Deferred income

taxes are recorded in full using the liability method. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arise on

temporary differences between carrying values of assets and liabilities for Group purposes and their

related tax values. These temporary differences arise mainly from depreciation on property, plant and

equipment, revaluation of certain non-current assets, provisions for pensions and other retirement

benefit obligations and tax loss carry-forwards, and, in the case of acquisitions, the difference between

the fair value of the net assets acquired and their tax base. The tax rates and laws enacted or sub-

stantially enacted at the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred income tax. Deferred tax

assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available

against which the temporary deductible differences can be offset.

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences arising from investments in subsid-

iaries, associates and joint ventures. Exceptions are temporary differences for which the timing of the

reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled by the group and it is probable that the tem-

porary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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1.14 Pension plans

Current and former employees are covered by various statutory retirement plans in their respec-

tive countries. Both defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans exist. For defined benefit

plans, the defined benefit obligation (DBO) is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial valuations are obtained annually. This method corresponds to the present value of the ex-

pected future cash flows. The costs recognized in the income statement comprise the actuarially de-

termined costs for the period less contributions made by employees. Actuarial gains and losses are

accounted for over the average remaining working period of the employees if these gains and losses

exceed the 10% corridor of the higher of retirement benefit liabilities and pension fund assets. Em-

ployer contribution reserves in special employer funds are taken into account. Past-service costs are

recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the

employee remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the

past-service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The contributions to

defined contribution pension plans are charged to the income statement in the period to which they

relate. Costs related to pension plans are, together with other personnel expenses, included in cost of

goods sold, costs for marketing and distribution, research and development and administration

costs.

1.15 Provisions

Provisions are made when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past

event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and

when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If an outflow of resources to

settle an obligation is not probable, a contingent liability is disclosed. Provisions for product warranties

are made to the extent of the outflow of resources that can be expected to meet the obligation in full.

For costs that are expected to arise in connection with plant closures, the disposal of companies or

business units and restructuring, provisions are made at the time of the approval and announcement

of the planned measures. For onerous contracts, provisions are provided if the unavoidable costs of

meeting the obligation exceed the economic benefit to be received.

1.16 borrowings

Liabilities are stated as being short-term if they are settled within 12 months or there is no un-

conditional right to extend the settlement to at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. Initial

recognition is at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Valuation is subsequently carried out at

amortized cost value using the effective interest method.

1.17 equity

Registered shares are classified as equity. Own shares and options to acquire own shares as well

as realized gains or losses stemming from disposals and costs relating to capital increases and de-

creases are deducted from equity. Dividends are charged to equity in the period in which they are

approved.
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1.18 revenue

Revenue from sales and services to third parties is reported net. This includes the total value of

invoices for products and services sold, licensed or leased out. Trade rebates, sales tax or value-added

tax as well as credit notes for goods returned are deducted from revenue. Revenue from project con-

tracts is determined based on the stage of completion using the Percentage of Completion (POC)

method if the stage of completion and expected outcome can be measured reliably. The respective

calculation is based on the costs incurred and the total costs to complete. If it is probable that the

contract costs will exceed the economic benefit, the potential loss is recognized in the income state-

ment regardless of the project progress.

1.19 borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to income statement as incurred.

1.20 segment reporting

The segment reporting is based primarily on divisions and secondarily on geographical regions.

The regions correspond to the sales channels (client location). The business sectors are managed on

a global basis. Transactions between the segments are carried out at standard market terms. The as-

sets of the segments include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, assets from finance

leases, loans to third parties, inventories and work in process, trade receivables and other current as-

sets. The liabilities comprise provisions, customer prepayments, trade payables and other short-term

liabilities. The eliminations concern balances between the segments.

1.21 option plans

Ascom offers various employee option plans (stock option plans). The fair value of the employee

benefits as remuneration for the options received is booked as an expense. The total expense, which

is recorded over the entire vesting period, is based on the fair value of the options, with market condi-

tions taken into account. Conditions that are not market-related are included in the estimate of the

exercisable options. These estimates are assessed as of each balance sheet date and recorded under

personnel expenses, with the corresponding counter booking directly within equity. Management has

determined that its plans are equity-settled.

1.22 Leases

Accounting for leases by the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the

lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the

income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Accounting for finance leases by the lessor

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred from

the lessor to the lessee are classified as finance leases.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease payment is

recognized as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the

receivable is recognized as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognized over the term of the

lease using the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.
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1.23 Main sources of uncertainty with regard to estimates

(Critical accounting estimates and judgments)

Below we explain important forward-looking assumptions and other main sources of uncer-

tainty with regard to estimates, which could result in significant value adjustments in respect of assets

and liabilities carried on the balance sheet in the coming financial year.

Goodwill is regarded as an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life that must be tested for

impairment at least once a year. For this purpose, it is necessary to estimate future cash flows from

the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated. Determining the useful life requires an

estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash generating unit and the setting of an ap-

propriate discount rate to determine the present value of these cash flows. The estimates of the cash

flows are based onmedium-term plans. The discount rate applied reflects the risk arising in connection

with the respective business activities. If the estimated EBIT margin for the future years had been 10%

lower than management’s estimates no impairment would have been recognized. An increase of the

discount rate from 10 to 11 % would also not have resulted in the recognition of impairment charges.

The goodwill recorded in the balance sheet at 31 December 2007 came to CHF 12.6 million (2006:

CHF 12.7 million). Further information on goodwill can be found in Note 5.

In connection with recording revenue from project contracts it is necessary to reliably determine

the project progress and costs. The calculation is based on the ratio of the costs already incurred to

the estimated total contract costs. The contracts are analysed and reassessed as of every balance

sheet date. The POC revenue in the period under review amounted to CHF 92.3 million (2006: CHF 122.0

million) (Note 11).

Ascom management regularly monitors the net future outflow of economic benefits related to

onerous lease contracts. In calculating the value of these provisions, net cash flows of forecasts with

a time horizon to 2015 are used and the planned costs are amortised with market related discount

rates. Management continuously updates the provisions for the likelihood of finding tenants for vacant

space in the foreseeable future (Note 19).

Restructuring provisions are created in connection with the discontinuation or reorganization of

business areas or geographic business segments if there is a detailed formal plan and the implications

are known and communicated. As of 31 December 2007, the restructuring provisions amounted to

CHF 17.9 million (2006: CHF 5.2 million) (Note 19).

As of the balance sheet date, there were non-capitalized loss carry-forwards totalling CHF 1,310.6

million (2006: CHF 1,187.5 million) (Note 6). As a result of future positive developments with regard to

income, the possibility may arise that deferred tax assets in connection with these tax loss carry-for-

wards are capitalized at least in part.
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2. siGniFicAnt trAnsActions And operAtionAl cHAnGes

2007 – restructuring plans and global business realignment

Ascom undertook various projects during the first semester of 2007 to continuously adjust its

cost base. During September 2007 the Group announced Vitesse, a global plan including restructuring,

growth as well as portfolio initiatives. The restructuring initiatives include a plan to reduce gross 235

jobs at several European locations (including discontinued operations). The growth initiatives include

amongst others investment by the Group in bulk recruitment and marketing studies. The portfolio

initiatives include the disposals of Traffic Security, Payphones, Toll and LPS (also refer Note 33). The

Group has made significant progress in implementing the Vitesse plan before its financial year-end.

The following table sets out themain financial impacts of the 2007 realignment and restructuring

activities, as included in the current year income statement:

CHFm Notes Continuing
operations

discontinued
operations

total1

Impairments of intangible assets 5 6.8 – 6.8

Increase of onerous lease provisions 24 12.5 – 12.5

Termination benefits 27, 33, 41 17.0 3.6 20.6

Impairment of assets held for sale 33 – 3.3 3.3

Inventory call-backs, impairments
and adjustments

9 2.9 0.4 3.3

Other growth initiatives 1.2 – 1.2

Cost cutting measures, incl. normal
terminations and other savings

4.9 1.0 5.9

total 45.3 8.3 53.6

1Further information on restructuring provisions relating to termination benefits can be found in note 19.

The above table includes the impact of CHF 45.9 million relating to project Vitesse, pertaining to

restructuring and growth initiatives. The remaining costs relate to non-Vitesse measures taken

throughout the year.
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2006

divestment of Manufacturing France

On 4 July 2006, Ascom announced that it had received an irrevocable offer from the French

industrial buyer Network Concept Finances SA (NCF) to purchase the residual activities of Manufactur-

ing France (Ascodi Industries SAS) at its book value. The closing took place as planned at 30 Septem-

ber 2006. All 175 employees were taken over by NCF.

divestment of Network integration italy

In line with its strategy, Ascom sold the Italian Network Integration activity (part of the former

Network Integration Division) to Technomatica Italia S.p.A on 1 December 2006 for an amount of CHF

36.7 million. This transaction resulted in a book loss of CHF 11.4 million and a cash inflow of around CHF

31.6 million. All of the 137 employees as well as the related business activities were taken over by

Technomatica via a transfer of all of the shares of Ascom Italia S.p.A.

divestment of property

On 27 June 2006 Ascom sold its Solothurn Ziegelmatte property to Ypsomed, The sales price of

CHF 10.7 million resulted in a book profit of CHF 0.8 million after fees and provisions taken by Ascom,

mainly for environmental clean-up. In July 2006 Ascom sold its remaining Swiss Real Estate portfolio

in Solothurn (Weissenstrasse), Estavayer le Lac and Lausanne Entre Bois at book value to Yennora

Continental SA. The property was no longer required for Ascom’s operations and had been reported

as held-for-sale.

other divestments

In the course of its divestment program Ascom sold the German Network Integration activity

with a transaction loss of CHF 0.8 million. Furthermore Ascom sold Powerline Communications. Ascom

has received a royalty-free and non-transferable license of specific Powerline know-how for use in its

own business. The gain on the transaction amounted to CHF 1.0 million. On 29 June 2006 Ascom sold

its 50 % share in Mediacrypt AG to the other shareholder at book value.
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3. risk mAnAGement

3.1 risk controlling using clearly defined management information systems

As an international company, Ascom is exposed to a variety of financial and non-financial risks

that are directly associated with the Group’s business operations. The Group’s risk exposure is ad-

dressed in accordance with the principle of risk limitation. Our overall risk management is an integral

part of corporate management and the long-term corporate strategy, and it is correspondingly incor-

porated in the framework of our business processes and procedures.

Ascom applies clearly defined management information and control systems to measure, moni-

tor and control the risks to which it is exposed. Detailed monthly reports are drawn up. Our internal

auditing officemonitors the effectiveness and efficiency of our riskmanagement activities and control

systems at regular intervals and makes adjustments as and when required.

3.2 operational risks

The Security Solutions andWireless Solutions Divisionsmanage some large and complex projects.

Depending on the Division, these projects can extend from several months to asmuch as several years.

Technical problems, unforeseen developments at project sites, problems at the customer end, and a

degree of dependence on our suppliers’ technological approaches constitute the greatest risks in the

project business. To minimize the risk of operational downtimes, quality problems and the associated

extra costs or contractual penalties, the Divisions have defined specific directives and procedures in

cooperation with the Group. The bid process itself is governed by a list of strictly defined responsi-

bilities and provisions that cover commercial as well as legal aspects. It is the policy of each Division

to require suppliers to agreewith the fulfilment guarantees demanded by customers. Subject to certain

limits, exclusions and or co-payments, Ascom is also insured against the financial consequences of

such guarantees in the event of damage claims. Moreover, consistent implementation of a clearly

defined procedure ensures regular reviews of the individual project steps as well as the financial and

legal requirements in respect of ongoing projects.

The continuing loyalty of our customers is dependent on the compliance of our security solutions

with high quality standards and security regulations. New developments are therefore subjected to

comprehensive security tests. Operating reliability is ensured by our maintenance organizations on

the basis of customer-specific Service Level Agreements governing maintenance and operation, and

through standardized processes at the individual Division level. This is further supported through the

continued training of our employees in accordance with international guidelines such as the Interna-

tional Project Management Association (IPMA) and the IT Infrastructure Library (ITIL).
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3.3 supplier-related risks

Our security solutions are also dependent on external suppliers. This involves risks concerning

unexpected difficulties in delivery or unforeseeable price rises as a result of changes in market condi-

tions or currency effects. We aim to minimize these risks by way of comprehensive contractual regu-

lations with our suppliers. However, the boundaries set for the Ascom Divisions vary depending on the

market position of their suppliers. The Divisions therefore endeavour to develop vendor-independent

solutions and, wherever possible, to enter into long-term delivery agreements.

3.4 employee-related risks

In the areas in which Ascom is active, there is intensive competition for well-qualified technical

andmanagement staff with the technological andmarket-specific skills that are key for Ascom. Skilled

employees are extremely important for the value-added development of our Group. We therefore

strive to recruit well-trained employees, to ensure they are integrated optimally, and to foster a long-

term working relationship. We offer our employees not only attractive conditions of employment, but

also opportunities for targeted further training and education. Another top priority is the provision of

high-quality apprentice training schemes in our various business areas.

3.5 Capital risks

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue

as a going concern in order to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders

and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order tomaintain or adjust the capital structure, the Groupmay adjust the amount of dividends

paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

3.6 other risks

Our innovative and competitive strengths are consolidated and expanded on the one hand

through organic growth, and on the other through targeted acquisitions. Our Group’s business port-

folio therefore changes over time through the sale of parts of the company, acquisitions of new com-

panies and strategic alliances. The potential risks in this regard arise from changing market, com-

petitive or company developments that can delay or even prevent the conclusion of negotiations to

sell or acquire companies.We counter these risks by defining clear processes and high standards, which

we apply to every transaction.

3.7 Financial risks

Financial risk management (cash management, procurement of loans and advances, hedging of

interest rate risks, foreign-exchange risks, market risks and credit risks) is carried out centrally by

Group treasury and is ensured by the relevant written principles and guidelines laid down bymanage-

ment and approved by the Board of Directors. The Group has written policies in place to cover spe-

cific risk areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial

instruments and management of (excess) liquidity. Group treasury identifies, evaluates and selec-

tively hedges certain financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units/divisions.

Group companies submit monthly reports on loans and cash positions.
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Financial risks comprise liquidity risk, market risk and credit risk:

3.7 a) Liquidity risks

Forward-looking and prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and

marketable securities as well as the ability to draw on committed credit lines. In general, the liquidity

status is monitored by Group treasury on a weekly basis. In addition, bottom-up 12 month rolling

liquidity- and reserve forecasts are prepared on a monthly basis (undrawn credit facilities and cash

and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow).

An analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities into the relevant maturity groupings, based on the

remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date, is set out below:

CHFm
As at 31.12.2007

Less than
12 months

between
1 and 5 years

over
5 years

total 1

Trade payables and other liabilities excl. customer prepayments 149.5 3.3 – 152.8

total 149.5 3.3 – 152.8

CHFm
As at 31.12.2006

Less than
12 months

between
1 and 5 years

over
5 years

total 1

Borrowings 0.1 – – 0.1

Trade payables and other liabilities excl. customer prepayments 153.0 5.4 – 158.4

total 153.1 5.4 – 158.5

1 the amounts in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows and these amounts will therefore not reconcile with the amounts dis-

closed on the balance sheet. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balance as the impact of discounting is not significant.

An analysis of the Group’s derivative financial instruments which will be settled on a gross basis

into the relevant maturity groupings, based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the con-

tractual maturity date, is set out below:

CHFm
As at 31.12.2007

Less than
3 months

between
3 and 12 months

between
1 and 5 years

over
5 years

total 1

Forward foreign exchange contracts – outflow 0.2 0.4 0.1 – 0.7

Forward foreign exchange contracts – inflow 0.2 0.6 – – 0.8

CHFm
As at 31.12.2006

Less than
3 months

between
3 and 12 months

between
1 and 5 years

over
5 years

total 1

Forward foreign exchange contracts – outflow 0.6 – – – 0.6

Forward foreign exchange contracts – inflow 1.0 0.2 0.1 – 1.3

1 the amounts in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows and these amounts will therefore not reconcile with the amounts dis-

closed on the balance sheet. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balance as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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3.7 b) Market risks

Market risks include foreign currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk

and price risk. Changes in the market values of financial assets, liabilities or financial instruments can

affect the Group’s asset and income situation. It is not part of the Ascom investment policy to invest

amounts in financial assets outside its operational activities. Apart from interest and foreign currency

risks, the Group is not exposed to any other significant financial market risks.

Foreign currency risks

Due to the global nature of its activities, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks. Foreign

exchange risks are continuously monitored and the necessary measures are taken as and when re-

quired, to hedge against impairment of valuewith respect to transactions and assets. Foreign exchange

gains or losses arise from future commercial transactions as well as financial assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies (mainly EUR, USD and GBP) if these are not the entity’s functional

currency and are affected by exchange rate fluctuations.

Management has set up a policy to require Group companies to manage their foreign exchange

risk against their functional currency. Foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge against

transaction risks from future operational activities at the closing date of the respective business. To

this end, the Group companies are required to hedge their entire foreign exchange risk exposure with

group treasury. The Group’s treasury riskmanagement policy is to hedge 100% of the anticipated cash

flows of all booked transaction exposures in each major foreign currency. Corresponding hedge trans-

actions are entered into with external counterparties with good international risk ratings and are

stated at market value.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign

currency translation risk. The Group’s treasury policy states that these types of translation risks are

in general not hedged.

At 31 December 2007, if the CHF had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the EUR with all

other variables held constant, post tax profit/loss for the year would have been CHF 0.8 million (2006:

CHF 0.6 million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of

Euro-denominated trade receivables, cash, forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange

gains/losses on translation of Euro-denominated liabilities.

At 31 December 2007, if the CHF had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the USD with all

other variables held constant, post tax profit/loss for the year would have been CHF 1.7 million (2006:

CHF 0.7 million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of

USD-denominated trade receivables, cash, forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange

gains/losses on translation of USD-denominated liabilities. The profit is more sensitive to movements

in CHF/USD exchange rates in 2007 than 2006 because of an increased amount of USD-denominated

cash and receivables as well as increased net exposure relating to forward foreign exchange con-

tracts.
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At 31 December 2007, if the CHF had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the GBP with all

other variables held constant, post tax profit/loss for the year would have been CHF 1.4 million (2006:

CHF 0.6 million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of

GBP-denominated trade receivables, cash, forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange

gains/losses on translation of GBP-denominated liabilities. The profit is more sensitive to movements

in CHF/GBP exchange rates in 2007 than 2006 because of an increased amount of GBP-denominated

cash and receivables as well as increased net exposure relating to forward foreign exchange con-

tracts.

interest-rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets apart from temporary cash surpluses, the

Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest

rates.

The Group has no long-term borrowings issued at variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at

fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Changes in interest rates can however have a negative effect on the Group’s income and inter-

est-rate fluctuations can impact the market value of financial assets and liabilities. Interest-rate risks

are not hedged, due to the insignificant level of long-term borrowings.

3.7c) Credit risks

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits

with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to customers, including outstanding

receivables and committed transactions. Credit risks may result in a financial loss if one party in a

transaction is unable or unwilling to discharge its obligations. Credit risk is managed by Group entities

and on divisional level for credits arising from goods delivered and services rendered. It is Group pol-

icy that all banks and financial institutions have to fulfil a minimum credit rating of “A”. Credit worthi-

ness of key customers is measured by using independent ratings; otherwise risk control assesses the

credit quality of individual customers by taking into account their financial position, past experience

and other factors. The utilisation of credit limits is monitored by Group entities at local level.
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The below table sets out the Group’s six major counterparties at balance sheet date, which

excludes customers for which the credit risk is mitigated by way of customer prepayments:

CHFm rating1 balance
31.12.07

balance
31.12.06

Counterparty (Financial institution)

Credit Suisse AA- 108.8 43.2

UBS AA 46.9 71.0

Anglo Irish Bank A 20.0 –

Counterparty (Customer)

Primary Wireless OEM BBB+ 2.9 5.3

Key European Telecommunications BBB+ 2.2 –

Major US Service Provider client BB 1.3 1.0

1long-term credit rating standard & poors

The number of customers and their geographical distribution minimizes the risk of clustering. No credit limits of
funds invested by the Group at financial institutions were exceeded during the reporting period and management
does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

3.8 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market pric-

es at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is

the current market price (see Note 7). The fair value of forward exchange contacts is determined by

using quoted forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to

approximate their fair values (see Note 10). The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure pur-

poses is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the currentmarket interest rate

that is available to the group for similar financial instruments.
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4. property, plAnt And equipment

CHFm Land and
buildings

other property,
plant and

equipment

equipment under
construction and

prepayments

total

Acquisition costs

Balance at 1.1.2006 49.2 175.2 2.1 226.5

Translation adjustments 1.6 5.5 0.1 7.2

Additions 2.4 8.3 2.8 13.5

Disposals (5.8) (26.9) – (32.7)

Sale of consolidated companies and business units (3.6) (20.4) (0.4) (24.4)

Reclassifications (0.2) 6.8 (3.5) 3.1

balance at 31.12.2006 43.6 148.5 1.1 193.2

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1.1.2006 28.6 151.1 – 179.7

Translation adjustments 0.8 4.6 – 5.4

Additions 1.2 9.9 – 11.1

Disposals (3.0) (25.7) – (28.7)

Sale of consolidated companies and business units (1.8) (18.8) – (20.6)

Reclassifications – 2.6 – 2.6

balance at 31.12.2006 25.8 123.7 – 149.5

Net book value at 31.12.2006 17.8 24.8 1.1 43.7

Property, plant and equipment held for sale (Note 33) 0.3

total net book value at 31.12.2006 44.0
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CHFm Land and
buildings

other property,
plant and

equipment

equipment under
construction and

prepayments

total

Acquisition costs

Balance at 1.1.2007 43.6 148.5 1.1 193.2

Translation adjustments 0.7 – – 0.7

Additions 0.6 6.0 0.1 6.7

Disposals (4.4) (10.2) – (14.6)

Reclassifications to PPE held for sale – (29.9) – (29.9)

balance at 31.12.2007 40.5 114.4 1.2 156.1

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1.1.2007 25.8 123.7 – 149.5

Translation adjustments 0.3 – – 0.3

Additions 1.2 8.7 – 9.9

Disposals (3.4) (8.1) – (11.5)

Reclassifications and impairment of PPE held for sale – (29.3) – (29.3)

balance at 31.12.2007 23.9 95.0 – 118.9

Net book value at 31.12.2007 16.6 19.4 1.2 37.2

Property, plant and equipment held for sale (Note 33) 0.6

total net book value at 31.12.2007 37.8

Leased assets included in property, plant and equipment (finance leases)

CHFm buildings other property,
plant and

equipment

total 2007 total 2006

Acquisition costs 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3

Accumulated depreciation (0.1) (0.1) (0.2) (0.2)

Net book value – 0.1 0.1 0.1

The fire insurance value of property, plant and equipment is CHF 214 million (2006: CHF 217 million).
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5. intAnGiBle Assets

CHFm Goodwill Licenses other total

Acquisition costs

Balance at 1.1.2006 13.0 19.4 56.3 88.7

Translation adjustments 0.5 0.4 3.1 4.0

Additions – 0.5 1.8 2.3

Disposals – (0.3) (1.5) (1.8)

Reduction in purchase price (0.8) (4.9) – (5.7)

Sale of consolidated companies and business units – (0.2) (0.9) (1.1)

Reclassifications – – (2.7) (2.7)

balance at 31.12.2006 12.7 14.9 56.1 83.7

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1.1.2006 – 5.7 48.3 54.0

Translation adjustments – 0.2 2.5 2.7

Additions – 1.6 1.9 3.5

Disposals – (0.2) (1.4) (1.6)

Sale of consolidated companies and business units – (0.1) (0.9) (1.0)

Reclassifications – – (2.7) (2.7)

balance at 31.12.2006 – 7.2 47.7 54.9

Net book value at 31.12.2006 12.7 7.7 8.4 28.8
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CHFm Goodwill Licenses other total

Acquisition costs

Balance at 1.1.2007 12.7 14.9 56.1 83.7

Translation adjustments (0.1) 0.2 (0.2) (0.1)

Additions – – 1.6 1.6

Disposals – – (0.1) (0.1)

Reclassifications to intangible assets held for sale – (1.8) (4.8) (6.6)

balance at 31.12.2007 12.6 13.3 52.6 78.5

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1.1.2007 – 7.2 47.7 54.9

Translation adjustments – 0.1 (0.2) (0.1)

Additions – 2.0 4.6 6.6

Impairments – 5.5 1.3 6.8

Disposals – – (0.1) (0.1)

Reclassifications and impairment of intangible assets held for sale – (1.8) (4.8) (6.6)

balance at 31.12.2007 – 13.0 48.5 61.5

Net book value at 31.12.2007 12.6 0.3 4.1 17.0

In connection with Wireless Solutions goodwill in the amount of CHF 12.6 million has been capitalized. The val-
ue was compared with the value-in-use as of the balance sheet date. The value in use is based on the cash
flows determined at the level of Wireless Solutions segment (horizon to 2012) using the medium-term plan-
ning. The basis for the cash flow estimate is the result before interest and taxes (EBIT). The yearly revenue
growth-rate is assumed to be 5 to 10% with an EBIT margin of about 10%. The inherent risk was sufficiently tak-
en into account with the discount rate of 10%. No impairments were recorded in the year under review.

Licenses included a carrying value of CHF 7.3 million on 1 January 2007 relating to the 2004 acquired Greenbox
business of Ascom (Finland) Oy (previously named Tumsan Oy). This license is amortized over 5 years in propor-
tion with the expected sales volumes. At the balance sheet date, the book value of the license was compared with
the value in use. The value in use is based on the cash flows determined at the level of Security Solutions (Cash
Generating Unit Defence/Public Safety) using forecasts with a time horizon to 2010 (2006: horizon until 2011).
The cash flow estimates are based on specific client relationships on the one hand and growth estimates in seg-
ments on the other. The high inherent risk was sufficiently taken into account with the discount rate of 19.5%. Based
on the most recent cash flow projections and also by limiting the time horizon of the license to 2010, management
deemed it necessary to fully impair the remaining book value of the license of CHF 5.5 million at 31 December 2007.

Other intangible assets include mainly software. Following a reassessment of the remaining expected life and
expected future economic benefits to be generated by other intangible assets, software with a carrying amount of
CHF 1.3 million was fully impaired during 2007.

Depreciation on intangible assets in an amount of CHF 1.9 million is included in the operating result (2006: CHF 1.7 mil-
lion).
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6. deFerred income tAx

CHFm deferred income
tax assets

deferred income
tax liabilities

Net value

balance at 31.12.2005 3.5 (4.3) (0.8)

Increase 1.9 (1.7) 0.2

Decrease (0.2) 1.9 1.7

Sale of consolidated companies (0.1) – (0.1)

Translation adjustments 0.2 (0.2) –

balance at 31.12.2006 5.3 (4.3) 1.0

Increase 0.7 (0.4) 0.3

Decrease (2.3) 1.5 (0.8)

Translation adjustments – 0.1 0.1

balance at 31.12.2007 3.7 (3.1) 0.6

Estimated reversal within 12 months 0.3 (0.8)

Estimated reversal later 3.4 (2.3)

Deferred income tax assets result from tax loss carry-forwards as well as valuation differences

of property plant and equipment and provisions. They are recognized to the extent that realization

through the future taxable profits is probable.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to

offset current tax assets against other current tax liabilities andwhen the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority. In 2007 deferred income tax liabilities in the amount of CHF 0.8 million

(2006: CHF 1.9 million) have been offset with deferred income tax assets. Provisions for deferred

taxes are calculated in accordance with the liability method. The deferred income tax liabilities pertain

to the following balance sheet positions:

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Property, plant and equipment 0.3 0.4

Intangible assets 1.3 2.6

Current assets 0.6 0.3

Liabilities 0.9 1.0

total 3.1 4.3
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The deferred income tax assets pertain to the following balance sheet positions:

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Property, plant and equipment 1.3 1.9

Tax losses 1.5 1.3

Liabilities 0.9 2.1

total 3.7 5.3

Tax loss carry-forwards which are not capitalized amount to CHF 1,310.6 million (2006: CHF 1,187.5

million) and expire in the following years:

CHFm

2008 67.8

2009 242.4

2010 317.1

2011 160.9

2012 0.1

2013 11.4

2014 65.8

Later 445.1

7. FinAnciAl Assets

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Investments in third parties 1.1 1.1

Loans and other financial investments 9.0 9.6

total 10.1 10.7

Investments in third parties are available for sale and are valued at fair value. Holdings in equity for which the fair
value of the market prices cannot be reliably determined are shown in the balance sheet at acquisition cost. This
refers to the stake in CSEM AG, Neuenburg. Loans and other financial investments in 2007 primarily comprise loans in
connection with the sale of real estate in Switzerland.
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8.a) FinAnciAl instruments By cAteGory

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

CHFm Note Loans and
receivables

Assets at fair
value through the

profit and loss

Available
for sale

total 1

Assets as per balance sheet

Trade and other receivables 10 81.1 – – 81.1

Available-for-sale financial assets 12 – – 0.6 0.6

Cash and cash equivalents 13 223.0 – – 223.0

Derivative financial instruments 36 – 0.8 – 0.8

balance at 31.12.2007 304.1 0.8 0.6 305.5

CHFm Note Liabilities at fair
value through the

profit and loss

other
financial
liabilities

total

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Derivative financial instruments 36 0.7 – 0.7

balance at 31.12.2007 0.7 – 0.7

CHFm Note Loans and
receivables

Assets at fair
value through the

profit and loss

Available
for sale

total1

Assets as per balance sheet

Trade receivables 10 110.5 – – 110.5

Available-for-sale financial assets 12 – – 0.6 0.6

Cash and cash equivalents 13 165.6 – – 165.6

Derivative financial instruments 36 – 1.3 – 1.3

balance at 31.12.2006 276.1 1.3 0.6 278.0

CHFm Note Liabilities at fair
value through the

profit and loss

other
financial
liabilities

total

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Borrowings 17 – 0.1 0.1

Derivative financial instruments 36 0.6 – 0.6

balance at 31.12.2006 0.6 0.1 0.7

1the Group had no held-to-maturity investments at balance sheet date.

76 Ascom FinAnciAl stAtements 2007 Group noteS to the conSolidated Financial StatementS



8.b) credit quAlity oF FinAnciAl Assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired at balance sheet date

can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings, if available, or to historical information about

counterparty default rates:

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits1

Financial institutions with A or better ratings 222.2 164.4

Financial institutions without official ratings, but approved
by Group treasury

0.3 0.2

total 222.5 164.6

1 the remainder of the balance sheet position ’cash and cash equivalents’ is cash on hand as well as national giro (post) accounts

derivative financial assets

Forward foreign exchange contracts with reputed Swiss financial institutions 0.1 0.7

total 0.1 0.7

The Group monitors the credit worthiness of its key customers by using independent ratings and by taking into ac-
count their financial position, past experience and other factors at subsidiary level. Due to the nature of the business
of Ascom and the Group’s customer base, the company does not deem it necessary to implement a group-wide policy
to manage the quality of trade receivables.
None of the financial assets that are fully performing has been renegotiated during the last year (2006: Nil).

9. inventories And work in process

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Raw materials and components 9.4 12.1

Work in process and customer specific contracts 16.5 16.3

Finished goods and goods for resale 20.1 23.1

total 46.0 51.5

Customer prepayments are recorded under other liabilities. Project contracts valued using the

POC method are included under prepaid expenses (Note 11). The above figures are after valuation

adjustments amounting to CHF 13.1 million as of 31 December 2007 (2006: CHF 21.7 million).
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10. trAde receivABles

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Receivables from third parties 81.1 110.5

Less: Provisions for impairment of trade receivables (2.0) (3.3)

total 79.1 107.2

The fair value of trade receivables equals the carrying amounts at year-end. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the fair value of trade receivables. As of 31 December 2007, trade receivables of CHF 79.1 million
(2006: CHF 107.2 million) were fully performing.

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired. As of 31

December 2007, no trade receivables were past due but not impaired (2006: Nil). These relate to a

number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The age analysis for

these trade receivables is as follows:

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Current/past due, not more than 30 days 74.2 99.9

Past due, up to 3 months 4.8 6.2

Past due, up to 12 months 1.4 2.1

Past due, more than 12 months 0.7 2.3

total 81.1 110.5

As of 31 December 2007, trade receivables of CHF 2.0million (2006: CHF 3.3million) were impaired

and provided for. The individually impaired receivables relate to customers from Wireless Solutions

(CHF 1.3 million) and Security Solutions (CHF 0.5 million), which are in unexpectedly difficult eco-

nomic situations. It was assessed that a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the following curren-

cies:

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Currency

Euro 40.1 53.2

US dollar 5.5 6.5

Swiss franc 19.2 30.0

UK pound 2.2 4.8

Other currencies 14.1 16.0

total 81.1 110.5
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Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

CHFm 2007 2006

Balance at 1.1. 3.3 8.0

Provision for receivables impairment 1.5 1.6

Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible (0.5) (1.1)

Unused amounts reversed (1.7) (4.3)

Sale of consolidated companies – (0.9)

Reclassifications to assets held for sale (0.6) –

balance at 31.12. 2.0 3.3

Valuation adjustments in the amount of CHF (0.4) million net were recorded in the reporting year (2006: CHF 0.1
million net). The creation and release of provision for impairment receivables have been included in “marketing and
distribution costs” in the income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off,
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security for trade receivables.

11. otHer current And non-current Assets

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Other receivables 10.7 12.9

Prepayments for goods 4.2 6.4

Accrued income 46.9 42.3

Finance leases 2.3 –

total 64.1 61.6

Less: Long-term portion of finance leases 2.0 –

total short-term portion 62.1 61.6

Other receivables include recoverable withholding tax and value added tax totalling CHF 2.2 million (2006: CHF 3.8
million). The other current assets do not contain any classes of impaired assets. Besides other items, accrued income
includes accrued revenues from project contracts valued using the POC method.

The key data in connection with project contracts valued using the POC method are as follows:

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Total revenue from project contracts 92.3 122.0

Accumulated costs 188.6 166.8

Profit share 57.2 46.0

Accumulated contract costs incl. recognized profits 245.8 212.8

Progress billings (222.0) (192.9)

Total accrued revenues valued using POC method 23.8 19.9

Customer prepayments on project contracts
(included under customer prepayments)

37.0 11.9
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A reconciliation of the finance lease assets is as follows:

CHFm due within
12 months

due after
12 months, but
before 5 years

due after
5 years

total due
31.12.2007

Gross investment in leases 0.4 1.5 0.6 2.5

Unearned finance income (0.1) (0.1) – (0.2)

Present value of minimum lease
payments

0.3 1.4 0.6 2.3

The Group has disposed of equipment under various finance lease agreements to third parties in the UK. The average
interest rate charged by the Group during 2007 was 14%.

The fair value of other current assets is as follows:

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Other receivables 10.7 12.9

Prepayments for goods 4.2 6.4

Accrued income 46.9 42.3

Finance leases 2.3 –

total 64.1 61.6

The fair value of finance leases are based on discounted cash flows by using a rate of 14%. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of other current assets. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security for other current assets.

12. FinAnciAl Assets Held For trAdinG purposes

This position comprises moneymarket paper. This is available without restrictions and is held for

trading purposes.

13. cAsH And cAsH equivAlents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, post office and bank account balances, as well

as moneymarket instruments with original maturities of under 3 months and are valued at face value.

Their availability is as follows:

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Available without restrictions 223.0 165.6

total 223.0 165.6

The average interest rate on cash and cash equivalents in the year under review was 3% (2006: 2%).
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14. pledGes

Ascom entered into a 3-year credit facility as of 31 March 2006. As of 31 December 2007 Ascom

has no pledges related to credit facilities.

15. sHAre cApitAl And reserves

Composition

CHFm Number 2007 Amount 2007 Number 2006 Amount 2006

Registered shares nom. CHF 0.50 36,000,000 18.0 36,000,000 18.0

Number of registered shareholders 6,950 7,110

The total authorized number of ordinary shares is 36,000,000, of which 35,419,200 are outstand-

ing. A capital redemption of CHF 5 per registered share took place in June 2006 for a total amount of

CHF 180 million.

own shares

CHFm Number 2007 Amount 2007 Number 2006 Amount 2006

Balance at 1.1. 317,600 4.4 304,800 5.6

Additions 360,800 4.2 54,800 0.8

Disposals (97,600) (1.5) (42,000) (0.4)

Reduction in nominal value of
share capital

– – – (1.6)

Balance at 31.12. 580,800 7.1 317,600 4.4

During 2007, Ascombought 360,800 registered shares to hedge the issuance of shares in conjunc-

tion with the exercise of options under the Ascom Stock Option Plan 2007 I and II. In 2006, Ascom

bought 54,800 registered shares to hedge the Ascom Stock Option Plan 2006. The holdings of own

shares stated under the changes in equity correspond to these registered shares. All shares issued by

the company were fully paid.
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16. minority interests

CHFm 2007 2006

Balance at 1.1. 0.1 0.1

(Loss)/income – –

balance at 31.12. 0.1 0.1

Ascom’s 51% interest in Letus ZAO, St. Petersburg and the related minority interests remained unchanged during the
year.

17. BorrowinGs

CHFm short-term total
2007 2006 2007 2006

Loans from financial institutions
and banks

– 0.1 – 0.1

total at 31.12. – 0.1 – 0.1

As of 31 December 2007, the Group’s credit facility comprised a combined cash and guarantee line of total CHF 100
million (2006: CHF 100 million). As of 31 December 2007, Ascom did not use the cash credit line.
For short-term and long-term bank liabilities, as of 31 December 2007 Ascom has a total of CHF 50.6 million (2006: CHF
50.7 million) in cash credit lines available from financial institutions and banks worldwide, no part of which was taken
up on 31 December 2007 (2006: Nil). The expiry of the borrowing facilities is longer than one year.
The fair value of the long-term borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not signifi-
cant. The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings approximate their fair value.

borrowings by currency

CHFm short-term total
2007 2006 2007 2006

EUR – 0.1 – 0.1

total at 31.12. – 0.1 – 0.1

31.12.2007 31.12.2006

effective interest, rates applied

Short-term credits – 4.2%

Long-term credits – 2.5%

Leasing liabilities – 7.5%

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the balance sheet date are

as follows:

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

6 months or less – 0.1

total – 0.1
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18. retirement BeneFit oBliGAtions

Ascom employees are covered by either a defined benefit plan or a defined contribution plan.

Significant defined benefit plans are subject to annual valuation by qualified actuaries. The latest

valuations took place on 31 December 2007 and 2006. The valuation methods used are described in

Note 1.14. Unfunded plans exist primarily in the case of the German companies.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

CHFm Plans in switzerland other plans total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Present value of funded obligations (1,123.8) (1,183.6) (32.9) (63.4) (1,156.7) (1,247.0)

Fair value of plan assets 1,270.6 1,275.2 18.4 52.7 1,289.0 1,327.9

Funded status 146.8 91.6 (14.5) (10.7) 132.3 80.9

Present value of unfunded obligations – – (5.3) (5.5) (5.3) (5.5)

Unrecognized actuarial losses/(gains) (43.6) (43.6) 3.5 (0.9) (40.1) (44.5)

Unrecognized plan assets (94.7) (39.5) – – (94.7) (39.5)

Unrecognized past service costs – – – – – –

Asset/(Liability) in the balance sheet 8.5 8.5 (16.3) (17.1) (7.8) (8.6)

Prepaid asset 9.2 9.4

Retirement benefit obligation - continued operations (15.8) (18.0)

Retirement benefit obligation - discontinued operations (1.2) –

(7.8) (8.6)

The movement in the defined obligation for the year is as follows:

CHFm Plans in switzerland other plans total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

beginning of the year (1,183.6) (1,201.7) (68.9) (69.3) (1,252.6) (1,271.0)

Current service costs (5.5) (6.3) (1.5) (2.2) (7.0) (8.5)

Past service costs – (5.4) – – – (5.4)

Interest costs (35.8) (36.0) (1.7) (3.0) (37.5) (39.0)

Contributions by plan participants (5.7) (5.8) – (0.6) (5.7) (6.4)

Actuarial (losses)/gains 43.5 (15.5) (0.1) 3.2 43.4 (12.3)

Exchange differences – – 1.3 (3.1) 1.3 (3.1)

Benefits paid 63.3 87.1 2.4 2.3 65.7 89.4

Curtailments and settlements – – 0.1 – 0.1 –

Leaving the consolidation scope – – 30.2 3.8 30.3 3.8

end of the year (1,123.8) (1,183.6) (38.2) (68.9) (1,162.0) (1,252.6)
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The movement in the fair value of the plan assets of the year is as follows:

CHFm Plans in switzerland other plans total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

beginning of the year 1,275.2 1,238.2 52.7 47.8 1,327.9 1,286.0

Expected return on plan assets 57.4 56.0 1.2 2.4 58.6 58.4

Actuarial (losses)/gains (4.5) 62.1 (0.4) (0.3) (4.9) 61.8

Exchange differences – – (1.2) 2.2 (1.2) 2.2

Employer contributions1 0.1 0.2 0.1 1.0 0.2 1.2

Employee contributions 5.7 5.8 – 0.6 5.7 6.4

Benefits paid (63.3) (87.1) (1.0) (1.0) (64.3) (88.1)

Leaving the consolidation scope – – (33.0) – (33.0) –

end of the year 1,270.6 1,275.2 18.4 52.7 1,289.0 1,327.9

1employer contributions are less than the employee contributions due to the company’s use of its contribution reserve.

The plan assets are comprised as follows:

CHFm Plans in switzerland other plans total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Cash 80.9 55.6 – – 80.9 55.6

Equity 526.5 558.8 6.3 16.8 532.8 575.6

Bonds 132.4 132.2 8.8 34.8 141.2 167.0

Mortgages 95.3 97.7 – – 95.3 97.7

Property 430.5 423.8 – – 430.5 423.8

Other 5.0 7.1 3.3 1.1 8.3 8.2

total 1,270.6 1,275.2 18.4 52.7 1,289.0 1,327.9

The pension costs consist of:

CHFm Plans in switzerland other plans total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Current service costs 5.5 6.3 1.5 2.2 7.0 8.5

Interest cost 35.8 36.0 1.7 3.0 37.5 39.0

Expected return on plan assets (57.4) (56.0) (1.2) (2.4) (58.6) (58.4)

Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognized under IAS 19.58 (39.0) – 0.1 (0.2) (38.9) (0.2)

Past service costs – 5.4 – – – 5.4

Change unrecognized plan assets (IAS 19.58b limitation) 55.2 5.2 – – 55.2 5.2

Curtailments and settlements – – (0.1) – (0.1) –

expenses/(income) recognized 0.1 (3.1) 2.0 2.6 2.1 (0.5)

Of the total charge of CHF 2.1 million, CHF 0.4 million (2006: CHF 1.0 million) was included in cost

of goods sold, CHF 0.6 million in administration expenses (2006: CHF (2.9) million), CHF 0.5 million in

marketing and distribution and R&D expenses (2006: CHF 0.8 million) and CHF 0.6 million in other cost

categories (2006: CHF 0.7 million).
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The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the cost of funded retirement ben-

efits vary according to local conditions. The assumptions applied in the valuation of the significant

plans in Switzerland and abroad are as follows:

Plans in switzerland other plans
2007 2006 2007 2006

Discount rate in % 3.25 3.00 4.50 – 5.80 4.00–4.75

Expected return on assets in % 4.50 4.50 4.50 – 6.23 4.95–6.15

Future salary increases in % 2.00 2.00 1.00 – 3.00 2.25–3.00

Future pension increases in % 1.00 1.00 1.75 – 3.65 0.00–3.25

Average life expectancy in years of someone
retiring at 62 for Switzerland and 65 for the other
plans at the balance sheet date

– male 19.87 19.87 20.0 – 22.0 16.2–21.0

– female 22.75 22.75 24.0 – 25.0 20.4–26.0

Pension plan assets include buildings occupied by the group with a fair value of CHF 8.2 million at 31 December 2007
(2006: CHF 8.8 million).
The actual return on the pension fund capital was CHF 46.4 million (2006: CHF 120.2 million).
The expected return on plan assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets un-
derlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption
yields at the balance sheet date. Expected returns on equity and property investments reflect long-term real rates of
return in the respective markets.
The expected contributions to post-employment benefits for the year ending 31 December 2008 are CHF 5.6 million.

For the Swiss pension plan the experience adjustments can be shown as follows:

CHFm 2007 2006

Fair value of plan assets 1,270.6 1,275.2

Present value of defined benefit obligation (1,123.8) (1,183.6)

Funded status 146.8 91.6

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 13.6 (15.5)

Change in assumptions adjustment on plan liabilities 29.9 –

Experience adjustments on plan assets (4.5) 62.1

total actuarial gain 39.0 46.6
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19. provisions

CHFm 31.12. 2007 31.12. 2006

Restructuring 17.9 5.2

Onerous contracts 22.4 12.4

Warranties 10.2 9.9

Other provisions 18.0 13.9

total 68.5 41.4

expected usage:

Within 12 months 39.7 21.0

Later 28.8 20.4

restructuring

CHFm 2007 2006

Balance at 1.1. 5.2 13.1

Changes in consolidation – (0.8)

Reclassifications (3.7) –

Payments (2.5) (6.5)

Additions 18.8 1.1

Reversals – (1.8)

Translation adjustments 0.1 0.1

Balance at 31.12. 17.9 5.2

expected usage:

Within 12 months 15.7 2.9

Later 2.2 2.3

The Group announced a global gross reduction of 235 jobs at several locations within Europe during the third quarter
of 2007 (including the activities of discontinued operations). The Group has already entered negotiations and reached
agreements with some of the local union representatives that specify the number of staff involved and the
voluntary redundancy compensation package offered by the Group, as well as amounts payable to those made
redundant, before the financial year-end. The additions mainly include the estimated staff restructuring cost to
be incurred, including costs for social plans at 31 December 2007.
The restructuring provisions also include costs related to Divested activities and the risks associated with these
disposals. As a consequence of the ongoing restructuring process, it is not possible to specify the timing of potential
payouts precisely.
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onerous contracts

CHFm 2007 2006

Balance at 1.1. 12.4 7.2

Changes in consolidation – 0.2

Payments (3.1) (1.3)

Additions 13.1 6.5

Reversals – (0.2)

Balance at 31.12. 22.4 12.4

expected usage:

Within 12 months 3.8 4.0

Later 18.6 8.4

The provisions include onerous lease contracts for a number of leased properties that are partially or fully vacant.
Ascom does not use the vacant space and the Group experiences difficulties to sublet the premises. The value of the
provisions is based on the net cash flows using forecasts with a time horizon to 2015 and by amortising the costs with
market related discount rates of 5% – 6.5% (2006: 4% – 8%).
Based on the most recent cash flow projections and also by revising the assumptions related to the likelihood of find-
ing tenants in the foreseeable future, management deemed it necessary to increase the provision by CHF 13.1 million
at 31 December 2007.

Warranties

CHFm 2007 2006

Balance at 1.1. 9.9 14.0

Changes in consolidation – (0.7)

Reclassifications (2.2) –

Payments (4.1) (5.3)

Additions 7.4 5.8

Reversals (0.9) (4.2)

Translation adjustments 0.1 0.3

Balance at 31.12. 10.2 9.9

expected usage:

Within 12 months 6.8 4.7

Later 3.4 5.2

Provisions for warranties are project-related and are based on systematic extrapolation of historical payment pat-
terns, which are verified and adjusted periodically.
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other provisions

CHFm 2007 2006

Balance at 1.1. 13.9 14.1

Changes in consolidation – (2.3)

Reclassifications 4.8 –

Payments (0.7) (1.5)

Additions 3.5 8.0

Reversals (3.6) (4.6)

Translation adjustments 0.1 0.2

Balance at 31.12. 18.0 13.9

expected usage:

Within 12 months 13.4 9.4

Later 4.6 4.5

Other provisions comprise provisions for project risks, environmental costs relating to certain premises and other
obligations arising from lawsuits in connection with the operational business of Ascom companies. The additions
mainly relate to operational business risks.

20. otHer liABilities (lonG-term)

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Income tax due after 12 months – 1.1

Other liabilities 1.6 2.7

total 1.6 3.8

21. liABilities For income tAx

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Income tax due within 12 months 3.6 6.7

22. otHer liABilities (sHort-term)

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Prepayments from customers 88.4 36.5

Tax liabilities (in particular VAT) 8.1 7.2

Other liabilities 16.8 17.5

Accrued liabilities

– Payroll-related accruals (e.g. salaries, annual leave) 29.6 31.5

– Other 35.1 36.6

total 178.0 129.3

Other accrued liabilities above include all outstanding costs in connection with POC orders totalling CHF 12.9 million
(2006: CHF 16.1 million).
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23. revenue

CHFm 2007 2006

Revenue from goods delivered and services 459.6 446.0

Other revenue 30.9 28.9

total 490.5 474.9

24. otHer income/(expenses), net

CHFm 2007 2006

Release of provisions 2.9 3.0

Increase of onerous lease provisions (also refer to Note 19) (12.5) (5.4)

(Loss)/profit on sale of real estate (0.8) 1.2

Trademark/Management fees 3.0 1.5

Profit on sale of subsidiaries or business units after release of provisions 1.7 0.5

Other operating income/(expenses) (1.6) 1.9

total (7.3) 2.7

25. FinAnciAl income And expenses

CHFm 2007 2006

Financial income

Interest income 5.3 3.4

total 5.3 3.4

Financial expenses

Interest expenses1 1.6 1.5

Net foreign exchange losses 0.9 0.4

Other financial expenses 0.5 0.8

total 3.0 2.7

Net financial income 2.3 0.7

1relating mainly to discounting values of pension and onerous contract provisions.

26. income tAxes

CHFm 2007 2006

Income taxes on net income for the year 5.8 9.5

Effects from prior years (0.3) (6.7)

Discontinued operations 0.9 (1.3)

Deferred income taxes 0.4 (1.9)

total 6.8 (0.4)
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Analysis of tax rate

The following elements explain the difference between the expected tax charge (using the

weighted average tax rate based on profits/(losses) before taxes of each Group company) and the

actual tax rate:

CHFm 2007 2006

(Loss)/profit before income tax of continuing operations (13.8) 35.6

(Loss) before income tax of discontinued operations (28.4) (17.6)

total (loss)/profit before tax (42.2) 18.0

Theoretically expected average tax rate 26.5% 24.4%

Expected tax (11.2) 4.4

Utilization of tax loss carry-forwards (0.9) (17.6)

Changes in tax rates 0.4 0.7

Effect of tax losses not recognized 19.7 1.9

Effects from prior years (0.3) (6.7)

Effect of (income)/expenses taxed at lower rate or not taxed (1.8) 18.2

Actual tax 5.9 0.9

Income taxes continuing operations 6.8 (0.4)

Income taxes discontinued operations (0.9) 1.3

total income taxes 5.9 0.9

The weighted average expected tax rate was 26.5% (2006: 24.4%). The increase is caused by a change in the profit-

ability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries.

27. personnel expenses

CHFm 2007 2006

Wages and salaries, including restructuring costs and other termination
benefits of CHF 20.6 million

191.4 183.0

Social security costs 31.3 26.2

Share based payments (options granted to directors and employees) 0.9 1.0

Pension costs 13.9 11.5

Other personnel expenses 20.8 18.0

total 258.3 239.7
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28. leAse oBliGAtions

Non-cancellable lease obligations with a minimum period of at least one year fall due as follows:

At 31.12.
CHFm

Finance leases operating leases
2007 2006 2007 2006

Up to 1 year – – 23.0 23.0

1–5 years – – 81.0 86.5

More than 5 years – – 17.0 27.9

total – – 121.0 137.4

Significant leasing agreements exist with regard to the sale and lease back of properties used for operational pur-
poses in Berne and Hombrechtikon.

29. eArninGs per sHAre

Earnings/(loss) per share are calculated by dividing the Group income/(loss) attributable to the

shareholders by the time-weighted number of shares outstanding during the financial year. Treasury

shares are not considered as outstanding shares.

2007 2006

Group (loss)/profit attributable to the shareholders (CHFm) (48.1) 17.1

Weighted-average number of outstanding shares 35,671,415 35,684,476

(Loss)/earnings per share (CHF) (1.35) 0.48

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted-average number of ordi-

nary shares is adjusted by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares, which would be issued

on the conversion of all the potential dilutive shares into ordinary shares. In 2007 outstanding options

to purchase shares of common stock were not included in the computations of the dilutive net loss

per share as the net effect would have been antidilutive.

2007 2006

Group (loss)/profit attributable to the shareholders (CHF m) (48.1) 17.1

Weighted-average number of outstanding shares 35,671,415 35,684,476

Adjusted for the dilutive number of call options on Ascom shares – 51,442

Weighted-average number of diluted shares 35,671,415 35,735,918

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (CHF) (1.35) 0.48

For the year ended 31 December 2007 the Board of Directors proposed no dividend payment to the Annual General
Meeting on 15 April 2008 (2006: Nil proposed dividend). A dividend of CHF 10.1 million (CHF 0.28 per share) was paid in
2006.
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30. trAnsActions witH relAted pArties

Key management compensation (including the Board of Directors and the Executive Board) of

the Company is:

in 1000 CHF 2007 2006

Short-term employee benefits 3,025.5 3,206.0

Post-employment benefits 126.0 185.0

Share-based compensation1 745.0 832.9

total 3,896.5 4,223.9

1includes charges relating to former cFo and ceo

No further compensation was paid to key management during the year.

31. BoArd And executive compensAtion disclosures

The compensation disclosures for themembers of the Board of Directors and the Executive Board

required by the Swiss Code of Obligations Art. 663b bis and 663c are included in Note 7 of the Ascom

Holding Ltd. statutory financial statements for the year-end 31 December 2007.

32. sHAre options

Ascom stock option Plan 2004

In accordancewith the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 2 July 2004, a total of 99,000

options were issued to seven members of Ascom’s senior management on 1 July 2004, each option

entitling the holder to purchase one share with a nominal value of CHF 5.50. The strike price is CHF

14.21.

The options have a life of four years and are subject both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance

of the SMI index within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking period (one third of the options can

be exercised after one year). At the time when the options are exercised, the participants must also

have a valid employment contract with an Ascom company (truncation clause).

The Board of Directors resolved on 30 June 2006 to lower the strike price by CHF 5 for all outstand-

ing options with immediate effect due to the capital reduction of CHF 5 per share. The strike price for

all options with regard to the Ascom Stock Option Plan 2004 was fixed at CHF 9.21.

In 2007, a total of 24,000 optionswere exercised (2006 and prior years 55,000). No options became

nil and void during 2007 due to the employment relationship of the holders having ended (2006 and

prior years 16,000). There are 4,000 options still outstanding at 31 December 2007.

Ascom stock option Plan 2005

In accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 1 March 2005 and 27 June

2005, a total of 150,200 options were issued to seven members of Ascom’s senior management on 1

February 2005 and 1 July 2005 respectively, each option entitling the holder to purchase one share with

a nominal value of CHF 5.50. The strike price is CHF 22.25.
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The options have a life of four years and are subject both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance

of the SMI index within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking period to 31 January 2007.

The Board of Directors resolved on 30 June 2006 to lower the strike price by CHF 5 for all outstand-

ing options with immediate effect due to the capital reduction of CHF 5 per share. The strike price for

all options with regard to the Ascom Stock Option Plan 2005 was fixed at CHF 17.25.

In 2007, a total of 73,600 options were exercised. No options became nil and void during 2007

due to the employment relationship of the holders having ended (2006 and prior years 61,400). There

are 15,200 options still outstanding at 31 December 2007.

Ascom stock option Plan 2006

In accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 6 April 2006 and 29 August

2006 a total of 135,400 options were issued to four members of Ascom’s senior management on 1

March 2006 and 1 September 2006 respectively, each option entitling the holder to purchase one share

with a nominal value of CHF 5.50 and CHF 0.50 respectively. The strike price was CHF 19.75 and CHF 14.75

respectively.

The options have a life of four years and are subject both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance

of the SMI index within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking period to 28 February 2008.

The Board of Directors resolved on 30 June 2006 to lower the strike price by CHF 5 for all outstand-

ing options with immediate effect due to the capital reduction of CHF 5 per share. The strike price for

all options with regard to the Ascom Stock Option Plan 2006 was fixed at CHF 14.75.

No options were exercised and no options became nil and void during 2007 due to the employ-

ment relationship of the holders having ended (2006 and prior years 29,200). There are thus 106,200

options still outstanding at 31 December 2007.

Ascom stock option Plan 2007/i

In accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 5 March 2007 a total of

95,400 options were issued to three members of Ascom’s senior management on 5 March 2007 and

14 May 2007 respectively, each option entitling the holder to purchase one share with a nominal value

of CHF 0.50. The strike price is CHF 19.85.

The options have a life of four years and are subject both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance

of the SMI index within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking period to 4 March 2009.

No options became nil and void due to the employment relationship of the holders having ended.

There are thus 95,400 options still outstanding at 31 December 2007.

Ascom stock option Plan 2007/ii

In accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2007 a total

of 360,000 options were issued to 26 members of Ascom’s senior management on 1 October 2007,

each option entitling the holder to purchase one share with a nominal value of CHF 0.50. The strike

price is CHF 13.00.

The options have a life of four years and are subject both to an exercise hurdle (outperformance

of the SMI index within a period of 12 months) and to a blocking period (one third of the options can

be exercised after one year).

No options became nil and void due to the employment relationship of the holders having ended.

There are thus 360,000 options still outstanding at 31 December 2007.
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Number of
options 2007

Weighted strike
price (CHF)

2007

Number of
options 2006

Weighted strike
price (CHF)

2006

Options outstanding at 1.1. 223,000 15.05 425,870 11.57

Granted 455,400 14.43 135,400 18.85

Exercised (97,600) 15.27 (243,670) 3.96

Forfeited – – (53,900) 15.30

Expired – – (40,700) 17.25

Options outstanding at 31.12. 580,800 14.53 223,000 15.05

Exercisable at 31.12. 19,200 15.58 12,000 9.21

2007 2006

Range of exercise prices (remaining options) 9.21 – 19.85 9.21 – 17.25

Weighted-average of remaining contract duration (years) 3.28 2.53

Weighted-average of fair value of granted options 4.44 5.62

Average price of shares (exercised) 23.38 18.74

Personnel expenses included in equity (CHFm) 0.88 1.05

The enhanced American Model (binomial model) was used to determine the fair value, with the

following parameters:

strike price
(CHF)

Price on
issue date

(CHF)

Vesting
period
(years)

Max.
duration
(years)

Volatility
(%)

interest
rate
(%)

dividend
yield
(%)

Withdrawal
rate
(%)

expected
duration
(years)

Allocation 2004/ I 14.21 14.80 1.325 4 69.2 1.76 1.08 8 2.40

Allocation 2004/ II 14.21 14.80 2 4 69.2 1.97 1.08 8 3.00

Allocation 2004/ III 14.21 14.80 3 4 69.2 2.12 1.08 8 3.61

Allocation 2005/ I 22.25 22.40 2 4 55.4 1.47 1.24 8 3.00

Allocation 2005/ II 22.25 19.05 1.6 3.6 55.4 1.12 1.45 8 2.63

Allocation 2006/ I 19.75 19.95 2 4 51.1 2.08 1.37 8 3.00

Allocation 2006/ II 14.75 13.00 1.5 3.5 51.7 2.30 1.54 8 2.50

Allocation 2007/ I 19.85 19.85 2 4 62.6 2.56 1.01 8 3.00

Allocation 2007/ II 19.85 19.85 1.81 3.81 59.2 2.88 1.01 8 2.81

Allocation 2007/ III 13.00 11.80 1.325 4 58.5 2.97 1.68 8 2.66

Allocation 2007/ IV 13.00 11.80 2 4 58.5 3.00 1.68 8 3.05

Allocation 2007/V 13.00 11.80 3 4 58.5 3.04 1.68 8 3.63

The expected volatility was estimated using the historical, long-term volatility (in the case of the 2006 and
2007 granting also weighted with the implied volatility) over a ten-year period to the issue date.
The market-related exercise hurdle (market condition) was taken into account in calculating the fair value
of the options.
For all outstanding options from the ASOP plan 2004, 2005 and 2006 the strike price was lowered by
CHF 5 on 30 June 2006 due to the capital reduction of CHF 5 per share.
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33. Assets And liABilities Held For sAle And discontinued operAtions

Management is actively looking for a potential buyer for the activities of Industry Switzerland

(“LPS”), Traffic Security Switzerland and Payphones France and Mexico. The sale of these activities is

expected to take place in the next 12 months. Although the Group has not yet been successful to

obtain a firm purchase commitment for the activities of Toll France and Hong Kong, management

actively continues its program to market this disposal group and remains confident that an eligible

buyer will be found. The assets and liabilities are therefore considered to be held for sale and the results

of these activities are included in the results from discontinued operations.

Assets and liabilities held for sale

CHFm Ni b/d/CH1 Ni italy transport
revenue

Powerline
Communi-

cations

toll 31.12.2006

Assets Property, plant and equipment – – – – 0.3 0.3

Non-current assets – – – – 0.3 0.3

Inventories and work in process – – – – 5.0 5.0

Trade receivables 0.4 – – – 6.8 7.2

Other current assets – 4.2 0.3 0.3 0.5 5.3

Current assets 0.4 4.2 0.3 0.3 12.3 17.5

total assets 0.4 4.2 0.3 0.3 12.6 17.8

LiAbiLities Long-term liabilities 0.7 – 1.8 – 2.2 4.7

short-term liabilities 2.2 0.6 9.9 – 10.4 23.1

total liabilities 2.9 0.6 11.7 – 12.6 27.8

1comprises activities of network integration Germany, Belgium and switzerland incl. divisional headquarters

CHFm Ni italy/
b/d/CH1

transport
revenue

toll Payphones LPs traffic
security

31.12.2007

Assets Property, plant and equipment – – – 0.6 – – 0.6

Non-current assets – – – 0.6 – – 0.6

Inventories and work in process – – 3.5 1.4 3.2 2.0 10.1

Trade receivables – – 3.2 6.5 2.7 4.6 17.0

Other current assets 4.4 – 1.7 1.7 0.2 4.1 12.1

Current assets 4.4 – 8.4 9.6 6.1 10.7 39.2

total assets 4.4 – 8.4 10.2 6.1 10.7 39.8

LiAbiLities Long-term liabilities 0.5 1.7 0.2 1.0 0.2 1.8 5.4

short-term liabilities 0.7 8.8 7.7 13.3 3.2 7.4 41.1

total liabilities 1.2 10.5 7.9 14.3 3.4 9.2 46.5

1comprises activities of network integration italy, Germany, Belgium and switzerland incl. divisional headquarters

The assets and liabilities held for sale are valued at book value or fair value minus selling costs if lower.
Management reassessed the book value of the non-current assets of the disposal groups at year-end. Revaluations
were made of the non-current assets of LPS and property, plant and equipment and capitalised development costs
with book values of CHF 1.1 million and CHF 1.9 million respectively were fully written off. The book value of property,
plant and equipment of Toll France in the amount of CHF 0.3 million was written off to Nil.
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Further information on discontinued operations

CHFm toll Payphones LPs traffic
security

Ni italy other1 2006

Incoming orders 12.5 30.1 13.2 35.3 89.3 3.8 184.2

Order backlog 15.3 12.3 9.1 17.3 – 0.4 54.4

Revenue 18.2 35.0 12.2 42.8 82.1 4.0 194.3

Cost of goods sold (22.4) (24.8) (11.7) (33.4) (68.6) (3.7) (164.6)

Gross profit/(loss) (4.2) 10.2 0.5 9.4 13.5 0.3 29.7

Marketing and distribution (1.4) (4.2) (0.7) (7.1) (9.5) (0.5) (23.4)

Research and development (0.6) (1.6) (0.2) (1.6) – – (4.0)

Administration (1.9) (2.1) (0.8) (2.4) (2.0) (0.4) (9.6)

operating result (8.1) 2.3 (1.2) (1.7) 2.0 (0.6) (7.3)

Amortization of intangible assets – – (0.3) – – – (0.3)

Other income/(expenses), net (1.0) (0.1) (0.1) (0.8) (1.3) 5.6 2.3

Loss from divestment – – – – (11.4) – (11.4)

Profit/(loss) before interest and taxes (ebit) (9.1) 2.2 (1.6) (2.5) (10.7) 5.0 (16.7)

Net financial income/(expenses) (0.2) (0.7) – – – – (0.9)

Profit/(loss) before income taxes of discontinued operations (9.3) 1.5 (1.6) (2.5) 0.7 5.0 (6.2)

Profit/(loss) before income taxes of divestment – – – – (11.4) – (11.4)

Profit/(loss) before taxes (9.3) 1.5 (1.6) (2.5) (10.7) 5.0 (17.6)

Income taxes on profit from operations – (0.2) – – (1.1) – (1.3)

Income taxes on profit from divestment – – – – – – –

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (9.3) 1.3 (1.6) (2.5) (11.8) 5.0 (18.9)

Loss per share in CHF – – – – – – (0.53)

Diluted loss per share in CHF – – – – – – (0.53)

Cash flow from operating activities in CHFm (9.2) 4.0 (3.9) (3.0) (4.9) 1.8 (15.2)

Cash flow from investment activities in CHFm (0.1) (0.2) (0.8) – 29.9 25.0 53.8

Cash flow from financing activities in CHFm – – – – – – –

1 comprises activities of network integration Germany, Belgium and switzerland as well as powerline communications
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CHFm toll Payphones LPs traffic
security

other1 2007

Incoming orders 23.2 18.0 13.8 28.7 0.4 84.1

Order backlog 21.2 7.4 7.3 23.6 0.3 59.8

Revenue 18.2 23.1 15.6 19.6 0.6 77.1

Cost of goods sold (17.0) (18.8) (16.5) (22.6) (1.0) (75.9)

Gross profit/(loss) 1.2 4.3 (0.9) (3.0) (0.4) 1.2

Marketing and distribution (1.7) (4.0) (0.6) (6.2) (0.1) (12.6)

Research and development (0.3) (2.4) 0.1 (1.3) – (3.9)

Administration (2.2) (3.2) (0.9) (2.1) (0.1) (8.5)

operating result (3.0) (5.3) (2.3) (12.6) (0.6) (23.8)

Revaluation of non-current assets to fair value (0.3) – (3.0) – – (3.3)

Other income/(expenses), net (0.5) (0.2) (0.3) (0.7) 0.8 (0.9)

Profit/(loss) before interest and taxes (ebit) (3.8) (5.5) (5.6) (13.3) 0.2 (28.0)

Net financial income/(expenses) (0.1) (0.3) – – – (0.4)

Profit/(loss) before taxes (3.9) (5.8) (5.6) (13.3) 0.2 (28.4)

Income taxes on profit from operations – 0.9 – – – 0.9

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (3.9) (4.9) (5.6) (13.3) 0.2 (27.5)

Loss per share in CHF – – – – – (0.77)

Diluted loss per share in CHF – – – – – (0.77)

Cash flow from operating activities in CHFm (1.2) (8.2) (0.3) (3.4) 0.5 (12.6)

Cash flow from investment activities in CHFm – (0.2) (0.3) – – (0.5)

Cash flow from financing activities in CHFm – – – – – –

1comprises activities of network integration Germany, Belgium and switzerland as well as powerline communications and transport

revenue
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34. restAtement oF sHAreHolders’ equity

The Group launched a project during 2007 to analyse the nature and timing of amounts included

in the cumulative translation adjustment (“CTA”) account, as included in the Group’s statement of

changes in equity. In doing so, management noted that the CTA in the amount of CHF 43.1 million

relating to foreign operations in the US that were disposed of in various transactions mainly between

1999 and 2005 was erroneously maintained as unrealised translation adjustments in equity rather

than realising the losses over a number of years before 31 December 2005. At the same time, manage-

ment noted an effective repayment of equity type loans that would have resulted in the release of a

foreign gain in the amount of CHF 3.7 million prior to 31 December 2005. The net impact of CHF 39.4

million has been reclassified from translation adjustments to retained earnings as detailed below.

CHFm
balances included in the Group’s statement of changes in equity

retained
earnings

translation
adjustments

total

balance at 31.12.2005 – as stated previously 224.1 (52.5) 171.6

Reclassification of CTA loss relating to Ascom Holding Inc. US (43.1) 43.1 –

Reclassification of CTA gain relating to loans to foreign
operations

3.7 (3.7) –

balance at 31.12.2005 – restated 184.7 (13.1) 171.6

35. events occurrinG AFter tHe BAlAnce sHeet dAte

Since the balance sheet date, no further events have occurred that have an influence on the 2007

financial statements.

36. derivAtive FinAnciAl instruments

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Foreign currencies are purchased and forward contracts are entered into at Group level as a hedge

against foreign currency risks for accounts outstanding or planned. These derivative financial instru-

ments are held for trading. The open contracts comprise the following forward exchange contracts in

various currencies:

CHFm 31.12.2007 31.12. 2006

Contract volume 71.7 72.6

Positive market value 0.8 1.3

Negative market value 0.7 0.6
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breakdown by currency (CHFm) 31.12. 2007 31.12. 2006

USD 29.2 5.5

EUR 19.6 62.7

GBP 2.9 4.1

Other 20.0 0.3

total 71.7 72.6

The maximum credit risk corresponds to the aggregated positive market values. This risk is con-

sidered low since the counterparties are financial institutions of good standing. The positive market

values are included under other current assets, the negative market values under other liabilities. The

changes in value are recognized in the income statement under financial income as currency gains/

losses.

37. Future investments

Group companies have various investment plans that are required within the context of normal

business operations.

38. continGent liABilities

A number of Group companies issue warrantees in connection with their ordinary business op-

erations. Provisions are made for warrantees where the likelihood of fulfilment is probable (also refer

Note 19).

For the other contingent liabilities that mainly relate to guarantees issued by AscomHolding Ltd.

of CHF 191.2 million at 31 December 2007 (2006: CHF 172.6 million) there is no indication that these

guarantees will lead to fulfilment payments. Of this amount, CHF 69.6 million (2006: CHF 49.6 million)

pertains to discontinued operations, and in these cases recourse claims can be asserted against the

buyer of these operations.

39. domicile

Ascom Holding Ltd, the parent company of the Group, is domiciled in Berne, Switzerland.

40. time oF releAse For puBlicAtion

The Board of Directors approved the year-end financial statements on 3 March 2008 and gave

permission for publication at the media conference on 12 March 2008.
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41. seGment inFormAtion

Segment reporting represents the current set-up of the Ascom Group, while at the same time

allowing comparisons with the 2006 reporting.

The segment reporting covers the Wireless Solutions and Security Solutions divisions, Special

Products and the divested activities before 1 January 2005. Wireless Solutions comprises products and

services in connection with client-specific onsite communication solutions. Security Solutions com-

prises products and services in connection with solutions for security communication, institutions of

the public safety and defence sector, Telcom operations as well as the directly assignable activities of

the Real Estate and Shared Service Centre operations. Following the disposal of the greater part of the

Real Estate portfolio in previous years, the Group assigned the remaining activities of Real Estate and

Shared Service Centre to Security Solutions during 2007 to align its segment reporting with the man-

agement reporting. Special Products comprises Manufacturing France until September 2006. The seg-

ment Corporate includes those Group activities that cannot be assigned directly.

Key figures by segment (i)

CHFm security solutions Wireless solutions special Products Corporate total continuing
operations

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Incoming orders 236.9 227.9 309.2 297.2 – 18.1 – – 546.1 543.2

Order backlog 184.3 135.4 76.9 70.7 – – – – 261.2 206.1

Revenue 189.9 173.7 301.3 285.9 – 23.8 0.4 0.3 491.6 483.7

Of which with other segments 0.7 – 0.1 – – 6.7 0.3 – 1.1 6.7

Operating result (2.8) 12.6 23.2 32.4 – (1.6) (19.9) (10.4) 0.5 33.0

Restructuring costs included therein 4.2 – 9.6 0.8 – 0.8 3.2 0.1 17.0 1.7

Profit/(loss) before interest and
taxes (EBIT)

(28.8) 4.0 17.0 27.6 – (1.5) (6.2) 1.2 (18.0) 31.3

Depreciation, amortization
and impairment

11.1 3.9 8.7 8.3 – 0.5 – – 19.8 12.7

EBITDA (17.7) 7.9 25.7 35.9 – (1.0) (6.2) 1.2 1.8 44.0

Assets 97.6 96.2 142.5 138.2 – 34.2 240.4 204.9 480.5 473.5

Liabilities of third parties 181.5 76.5 100.2 67.0 – 35.3 19.2 64.5 300.9 243.3

Investments incl. acquisitions 2.0 2.2 5.6 7.1 – 3.4 – 0.5 7.6 13.2

Employees 620 643 1,175 1,156 – – 18 17 1,813 1,816
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Key figures by segment (ii)

CHFm divested activities 1 Consolidation 2 total Ascom

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Incoming orders – – (0.5) (7.0) 545.6 536.2

Order backlog – – – (0.4) 261.2 205.7

Revenue – – (1.1) (8.8) 490.5 474.9

Operating result (0.4) 0.6 – – 0.1 33.6

Restructuring costs included therein – – – – 17.0 1.7

Profit/(loss) before interest and
taxes (EBIT)

1.9 3.6 – – (16.1) 34.9

Depreciation, amortization
and impairment

– – – – 19.8 12.7

EBITDA 1.9 3.6 – – 3.7 47.6

Assets 0.3 1.4 39.8 17.8 520.6 492.8

Liabilities of third parties 2.2 1.6 46.5 27.8 349.6 272.7

Investments incl. acquisitions – – – – 7.6 13.2

Employees – – – – 1,813 1,816

1discontinued activities before 1 January 2005
2or assets and liabilities of third parties of discontinued activities after January 1, 2005

Key figures by region

CHFm switzerland europe excl.switzerland rest of the world Group

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Incoming orders 154 149 389 350 3 37 546 536

Revenue 129 96 354 345 8 34 491 475

Assets 67 104 178 190 7 8 2521 3021

Investments incl. acquisitions 1 2 7 11 – – 8 13

Employees 571 603 1,189 1,170 53 43 1,813 1,816

1excluding unallocated assets of cHF 229 million (2006: cHF 173 million) and discontinued operations
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42. consolidAted compAnies

Country Company Location Capital investment

Austria Ascom Austria GmbH Vienna EUR 3,634,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100 %

belgium Ascom (Belgium) NV Brussels EUR 1,424,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

Czech republic Ascom (CZ) s.r.o. Prague CZK 200,000 Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 100%

denmark Ascom Danmark A/S Silkeborg DKK 1,200,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

Finland Ascom (Finland) Oy Vantaa EUR 562,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

France Ascom SAS Guilherand-Granges EUR 5,000,000 Ascom Holding SA (F): 100%

Ascom Holding SA (F) Guilherand-Granges EUR 9,600,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

Ascom (France) SA Nanterre EUR 2,000,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100%

Ascom Multitoll Solutions SAS Orsay EUR 3,648,000 Ascom SAS: 100%

Germany Ascom Deutschland GmbH Frankfurt/M. EUR 2,137,000 Ascom Unternehmensholding
GmbH: 100%

Technologiepark Teningen
GmbH

Teningen EUR 6,136,000 Ascom Unternehmensholding GmbH:
94%, Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 6%

Ascom GCT Grau-communica-
tions technology GmbH

Frankfurt/M. EUR 1,534,000 Ascom Unternehmensholding GmbH:
94%, Ascom (Schweiz) AG: 6%

Ascom Unternehmens-
holding GmbH

Frankfurt/M. EUR 5,113,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

Hong Kong Ascom Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong HKD 1,500,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

Mexico Ascom de México SA. de C.V. México, D.F. MXN 50,000 Ascom SAS: 100%

Netherlands Ascom (Nederland) BV Utrecht EUR 1,361,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100%

Ascom Finance BV Arnhem EUR 45,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

Mocsa Real Estate BV Utrecht EUR 454,000 Ascom (Nederland) BV: 100%

Ascom Tateco BV Hoofddorp EUR 18,000 Ascom (Nederland) BV: 100%
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Country Company Location Capital investment

Norway Ascom (Norway) A/S Oslo NOK 1,250,000 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100%

Poland Ascom Poland Sp z o.o. Warsaw PLN 2,405,200 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

russia Letus ZAO St.Petersburg RUB 10,000 Ascom (Finland) Oy: 51%

sweden Ascom (Sweden) AB Gothenburg SEK 96,154,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 66.4%,
Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 33.6%

Ascom Sweden Holding AB Gothenburg SEK 100,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

switzerland AIWP AG in Liquidation Berne CHF 500,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

BIWP AG in Liquidation Berne CHF 50,000,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

Ascom (Schweiz) AG Berne CHF 28,000,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

Wolf Computer AG
in Liquidation

Berne CHF 100,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

uK Ascom Croydon Ltd. Croydon GBP 600,000 Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 100%

Ascom Dartford Ltd. Croydon GBP 1,000,000 Ascom UK Group Ltd.: 100%

Ascom (UK) Ltd. Sevenoaks GBP 50,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

Ascom UK Group Ltd. Croydon GBP 5,000,000 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

usA Ascom Holding Inc. Rockaway NJ USD 10 Ascom Holding Ltd.: 100%

Ascom (US) Inc. Morrisville NC USD 10 Ascom (Sweden) AB: 100%
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report of the Group Auditors to the General Meeting

of Ascom Holding Ltd., berne

As auditors of the group, we have audited the consolidated financial statements (consolidated

balance sheet, consolidated income statement, consolidated cash flow statement, consolidated state-

ment of changes in equity and notes on pages 46 to 103) of Ascom Holding Ltd for the year ended

31 December 2007.

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the board of directors. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements concerning professional qualification and indepen-

dence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards and with the Interna-

tional Standards on Auditing, which require that an audit be planned and performed to obtain reason-

able assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstate-

ment. We have examined on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant

estimates made and the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our

audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial

position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with the International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

Stefan Räbsamen Claudia Muhlinghaus

Auditor in charge

Zurich, 3 March 2008
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summary of Key Financial data

CHFm 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Incoming orders 545.6 536.2 563.3 802.1 1,619.6

Order backlog 261.2 205.7 196.2 217.3 583.8

Revenue 490.5 474.9 553.3 838.2 1,514.9

Operating result 0.1 33.6 17.1 45.1 (27.2)

(Loss)/profit before interest and taxes (16.1) 34.9 31.4 42.0 (45.2)

Personnel expenses 258.3 239.7 256.1 317.2 583.1

Depreciation and amortization 23.3 14.6 25.4 39.7 78.0

Group profit/(loss)3 (48.1) 17.1 140.1 45.0 (76.4)

Net cash flow from operating activities 65.9 14.9 41.0 44.9 54.2

Investments in property, plant and equipment 6.7 13.5 17.1 14.0 23.8

Research and development expenses 33.7 27.3 35.3 28.4 54.5

Balance sheet total 520.6 492.8 761.8 955.2 1,107.7

Non-current assets 70.0 88.5 103.9 167.2 223.2

Non-current assets in % of balance sheet total 13.4 18.0 13.6 17.5 20.1

Current assets 450.6 404.3 657.9 788.0 884.5

Current assets in % of balance sheet total 86.6 82.0 86.4 82.5 79.9

Inventories and work in process 46.0 51.5 70.0 108.1 146.8

Prepayments from customers 88.4 36.5 21.8 58.7 69.1

Equity 171.0 220.1 385.3 245.9 203.0

Equity in % of balance sheet total 32.8 44.7 50.6 25.7 18.3

Minority interests 0.1 0.1 0.1 – 0.6

Minority interests in % of balance sheet total – – – – 0.1

Short-term liabilities 300.3 226.2 319.2 619.4 573.3

Long-term liabilities 49.3 46.5 57.3 89.9 330.8

Liabilities 349.6 272.7 376.5 709.3 904.1

Liabilities in % of balance sheet total 67.2 55.3 49.4 74.3 81.6

Cash and marketable securities less
interest-bearing liabilities

223.6 166.1 279.1 134.3 55.0

Gearing1 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Dividend paid – 2 – 2 10.1 9.9 –

Number of employees 1,813 1,816 2,386 2,650 4,842

1 net interest-bearingdebt / equity
2 At theproposal of theBoard ofdirectors
3 prior year figures were restated for the impact of note 34.
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in 1000 CHF 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Assets Investments 79,309 174,586

Loans to Group companies – 1,296

Non-current assets 79,309 175,882

Accounts receivable from Group companies 2,850 2,349

Accounts receivable from third parties 5,072 4,708

Prepaid expenses 411 489

Own shares 7,101 4,420

Cash and cash equivalents 163,917 101,222

Current assets 179,351 113,188

total assets 258,660 289,070

LiAbiLities

ANd

equity

Share capital 18,000 18,000

Legal reserves

– General reserves 5,400 5,400

– Reserve for own shares 7,101 4,420

Special reserve from capital increase 14,776 17,457

Retained earnings 73,338 87,836

equity 118,615 133,113

Loans from Group companies 94,330 107,035

Other long-term liabilities 1,090 2,141

Long-term liabilities 95,420 109,176

Provisions 35,231 37,025

Accounts payable to Group companies 4,229 4,222

Accounts payable to third parties 4,039 3,492

Third-party accruals 1,126 2,042

short-term liabilities 9,394 9,756

total liabilities 140,045 155,957

total liabilities and equity 258,660 289,070

aScom holding ltd. Balance Sheet
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in 1000 CHF 2007 2006

Investment income 70,919 82,194

Profit from the sale of non-current assets 4,381 1,076

Financial income 5,811 4,482

Other income 5,408 6,505

total income 86,519 94,257

Financial expenses (2,700) (5,384)

Administration expenses (7,492) (6,447)

Depreciation and value adjustments on investments and loans (90,801) (75,223)

(Loss)/profit for the year before taxes (14,474) 7,203

Taxes (24) (55)

(Loss)/profit for the year after taxes (14,498) 7,148

income Statement
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1. General

Ascom Holding Ltd., Berne, which is listed on the Swiss stock exchange, is the holding company

of the Ascom Group. The accounts are prepared in compliance with Swiss law. In the year under review

there were no changes in the basic accounting policies compared with the prior year.

2. Accounting policies

Non-current assets: Investments and loans are recognized at cost less necessary provisions. Cur-

rency differences resulting from loans in foreign currencies are charged to the income statement.

Provisions are recorded for unrealized currency gains. Current assets: The positions are valued at

nominal value less necessary provisions. Liabilities: The positions are valued at nominal value. Effects

on foreign currencies are charged to the income statement.

3. Contingent liabilities

Sureties, guarantees and pledges in respect of Group companies, third parties and associated

companies total CHF 184.1 million (2006: CHF 171.9 million). Of this amount, CHF 136.5 million (2006:

CHF 120.6 million) are in favour of Group companies.

4. investments and pledged assets

Direct and indirect investments are listed in Note 42 of the consolidated financial statements.

Ascom entered into a 3-year credit facility as of 31 March 2006. As of 31 December 2007 Ascom has no

pledges related to credit facilities.

5. own shares

Own shares held by Ascom Holding Ltd. (Swiss Code of Obligations Art. 659) have developed as

follows:

in 1000 CHF Number book value

Balance at 1 January 2007 317,600 4,420

Additions in 2007 360,800 4,172

Disposals in 2007 (97,600) (1,491)

balance at 31 december 2007 580,800 7,101

6. significant shareholders

6.1 Changes subject to disclosure requirements during the 2007 financial year

In an announcement dated 16 January 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 of the Stock

Exchange Act (SESTA), Trident European Fund, Cayman Islands, disclosed that its share of Ascom vot-

ing rights is below 5% (SOGC notice of 26 January 2007).

In an announcement dated 17 January 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Victory

Industriebeteiligung AG, Vienna, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 20.1% of vot-

ing rights (SOGC notice of 26 January 2007).

In an announcement dated 17 January 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Sterling

Investment Group Ltd., British Virgin Islands, disclosed that its share of Ascom voting rights is below

5% (SOGC notice of 26 January 2007).

noteS to the annual Financial StatementS
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In an announcement dated 19 January 2007, published in compliancewith Art. 20 SESTA, Deutsche

Bank AG, London Branch, London, and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Zurich Branch, Zurich, acting

as a group, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 8.972% of voting rights (SOGC

notice of 26 January 2007).

In an announcement dated 22 January 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Bank

Vontobel AG, Zurich, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 6.53% of voting rights

(SOGC notice of 26 January 2007).

In an announcement dated 23 January 2007, published in compliancewith Art. 20 SESTA, Deutsche

Bank AG, London Branch, London, and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Zurich Branch, Zurich, acting

as a group, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 13.381% of voting rights (SOGC

notice of 30 January 2007).

In an announcement dated 25 January 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Hasler

Stiftung, Berne, disclosed that its share of Ascom voting rights is below 5% (SOGC notice of 1 February

2007).

In an announcement dated 29 January 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Bank

Julius Bär & Co. AG, Zurich, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 7.98% of voting

rights (SOGC notice of 1 February 2007).

In an announcement dated 31 January 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Bank

Vontobel AG, Zurich, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 10.275% of voting rights

(SOGC notice of 6 February 2007).

In an announcement dated 21 February 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Merrill

Lynch Capital Markets AG, Zurich; Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, New York; Merrill Lynch Inter-

national, London, and BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Ltd., London, all companies being

subsidiaries of Merrill Lynch & Co Inc., New York, and acting as a group, disclosed that it holds Ascom

securities accounting for 5.15% of voting rights (SOGC notice of 28 February 2007).

In an announcement dated 1 March 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Bank Von-

tobel AG, Zurich, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 9.53% of voting rights (SOGC

notice of 8 March 2007).

In an announcement dated 12 March 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Zürcher

Kantonalbank, Zurich, disclosed that it first held Ascom securities accounting for 16,43% and that after

a second transaction on the same day 1 March 2007 its share of Ascom voting rights is now below 5%

(SOGC notice of 19 March 2007).

In an announcement dated 13 March 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Victory

Industriebeteiligung AG, Vienna, disclosed that it first held Ascom securities accounting for 9,5% of

voting rights and that after a second transaction on the same day 1 March 2007 Victory now holds

Ascom securities accounting for 24.77% of voting rights (SOGC notice of 19 March 2007).

In an announcement dated 11 April 2007, published in compliancewith Art. 20 SESTA, Merrill Lynch

Capital Markets AG, Zurich; Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, New York; Merrill Lynch International,

London, and BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Ltd., London, all companies being subsidiaries

of Merrill Lynch & Co Inc., New York, and acting as a group, disclosed that its share of Ascom voting

rights is below 5% (SOGC notice of 27 April 2007).

In an announcement dated 23 May 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Victory

Industriebeteiligung AG, Vienna, disclosed that its share of Ascom voting rights is below 5% (SOGC

notice of 5 June 2007).
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In an announcement dated 23 May 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Zürcher

Kantonalbank, Zurich, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 20.11% of voting rights

(SOGC notice of 5 June 2007).

In an announcement dated 5 June 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Bank Von-

tobel AG, Zurich, disclosed that its share of Ascom voting rights is below 5% (SOGC notice of 11 June

2007).

In an announcement dated 18 June 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Bank Julius

Bär & Co. AG, Zurich, disclosed that its share of Ascom voting rights is below 5% (SOGC notice of 22

June 2007).

In an announcement dated 5 July 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Deutsche

Bank AG, London Branch, London, and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Zurich Branch, Zurich, acting

as a group, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 9.821% of voting rights (SOGC notice

of 12 July 2007).

In an announcement dated 5 July 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Bank Julius

Bär & Co. AG, Zurich, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 10.13% of voting rights

(SOGC notice of 12 July 2007).

In an announcement dated 3 August 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Bank

Julius Bär & Co. AG, Zurich, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 9.83% of voting

rights (SOGC notice of 14 August 2007).

In an announcement dated 27 September 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Bank

Julius Bär & Co. AG, Zurich, disclosed that its share of Ascom voting rights is below 5% (SOGC notice of

3 October 2007).

In an announcement dated 7 December 2007, published in compliancewith Art. 20 SESTA, Deutsche

Bank AG, Frankfurt, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 5.533% of voting rights and

further holds sale positions (granted conversion and share purchase rights) with voting rights con-

ferred of 14.423% (SOGC notice of 19 December 2007).

In an announcement dated 7 December 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Zürch-

er Kantonalbank, Zurich, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 25.89% of voting rights

and further holds sale positions (granted conversion and share purchase rights) with voting rights

conferred of 2,57% (SOGC notice of 19 December 2007).

In an announcement dated 10 December 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Von-

tobel Holding AG, Zurich, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 2.46% of voting rights

and further holds sale positions (granted conversion and share purchase rights) with voting rights

conferred of 17.54% (SOGC notice of 19 December 2007).

In an announcement dated 29 December 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA, Von-

tobel Holding AG, Zurich, disclosed that it holds Ascom securities accounting for 2.28% of voting rights

and further holds sale positions (granted conversion and share purchase rights) with voting rights

conferred of 6.15% (SOGC notice of 9 January 2008).

In an announcement dated 29 December 2007, published in compliance with Art. 20 SESTA,

Deutsche Bank AG, Frankfurt, disclosed that its share of Ascom voting rights is below 3% of voting

rights (SOGC notice of 9 January 2008).

6.2 significant shareholders

No shareholders holding more than 2% of the share capital were recorded in the share register

at 31 December 2007. This does not cover shares which are not registered in the share register (Dispo

shares). Dispo shares amounted to 61.5% as of 31 December 2007. The following parties are regarded
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as significant shareholders, as defined by Art. 663c Para. 2 of the Swiss Code of Obligations, in accor-

dance with the disclosure announcements made:

Zürcher Kantonalbank, Zurich: Ascom securities accounting for 25.89% of voting rights as well as sale�

positions with voting rights conferred of 2.57% (announcement dated 7 December 2007)

Vontobel Holding AG, Zurich: Ascom securities accounting for 2.28% of voting rights as well as sale�

positions with voting rights conferred of 6.15% (announcement dated 29 December 2007)

The Company held 580,800 own shares at 31 December 2007. There are no known shareholders’

agreements.

7. Compensation and participations

Compensation paid to board of directors 2007

Fees for members of the Board of Directors are set down in the Compensation Regulations (as

an appendix to the Organizational Regulations). The honorarium for a regular member of the Board

of Directors has been fixed at CHF 100,000 per annum after the Annual General Meeting 2007. The

Chairman of the Board of Directors receives a base honorarium of CHF 240,000 per annum. The Vice-

Chairman of the Board of Directors, who also acts as chairman of the Audit Committee, receives an

honorarium of CHF 160,000 p.a.

The members of the Board of Directors were paid compensation totalling 883,520 CHF in 2007, as

set out in the below table:

CHF base Variable

Cash Number of
options

bonus other
benefits

total

Juhani Anttila, Chairman of the Board of Directors 240,000 – – 60,000 300,000

Paul E. Otth, Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors 160.000 – – – 160,000

Dr. J.T. Bergqvist, Member of the Board of Directors 94,100 – – – 94,100

Dr. Wolfgang Kalsbach, Member of the Board of Directors 94,100 – – – 94,100

Dr. Rolf A. Meyer, Member of the Board of Directors 94,100 – – – 94,100

Dr. Axel Paeger, Member of the Board of Directors 94,100 – – – 94,100

Pierre Roy, Member of the Board of Directors
(until 16.4.2007)

23,560 – – – 23,560

Adrian Schmassmann, Member of the Board
of Directors (until 16.4.2007)

23,560 – – – 23,560

total 823,520 – – 60,000 883,520

Compensation paid to the executive board 2007

The compensation packages of all members of the Executive Board are set by the full Board of

Directors based on the recommendation of the Compensation & Nomination Committee. Eachmember’s

total compensation consists of a basic salary and a performance-related bonus. The focus of the per-

formance-related bonus is linked to the attainment of clearly measurable targets set at the beginning

of the year. On achieving the defined targets, the respective member of the Executive Board shall

receive a predetermined percentage of their basic salary as a bonus. In cases where the targets set in

themember’s respective area of responsibility are exceeded – and the Group targets are also achieved

– a sum up to a maximum of double the target bonus may be paid.
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In 2007, the members of the Executive Board received options worth 20% of the total of their

basic salaries and target bonuses under the Ascom Stock Option Plan 2007/I. The value of the options

was determined by an independent third party. In addition, in autumn 2007 the Board of Directors

issued an Ascom Stock Option Plan 2007/II to 26 members of Ascom’s senior management including

the members of the Executive Board as a voluntary allocation.

The allocation of options is made on the basis of stock option plans set up each year and agreed

in writing. The conditions regarding exercising are defined on allocation of the options, with no sub-

sequent changes being made and in particular no re-pricing. The management of the Ascom Stock

Option Plans is the responsibility of the Board of Directors.

in 1000 CHF base Variable

Cash Number of
options

Value of
options

bonus other
benefits

Pension con-
tributions

total

Fritz Mumenthaler, Deputy CEO and General manager
Wireless Solutions (highest compensated member of the
Executive Board)

543 69,500 378 144 364 45 1,474

Other members 794 181,900 878 297 – 81 2,050

total executive board 1,337 251,400 1,256 441 364 126 3,524

explanatory notes

Cash compensation consists of base salary (gross).�

All options allocated during 2007 were granted on 5 March 2007, 14 May 2007 and 1 October 2007�

and have a vesting period of 1-3 years and expire 4 years following the date of grant. Each option

entitles the holder to buy one share of the Company with an exercise price of CHF 19.85, CHF 19.85

and CHF 13.00, respectively.

The value of the option has been calculated as grant date fair value (using a binomial model) for�

options granted in the current year. The grant date fair values for the three noted grant dates were

CHF 7.22, CHF 6.85, and CHF 3.74, respectively.

Total other benefits include a payment for a tax neutralization compensation in relation to an inter-�

national assignment in Sweden.

Executive Board members’ bonus claims for 2007 will be calculated and paid in 2008 after approval�

of the annual financial statements. The criteria governing payment of the 2007 bonus aremeasurable

and contractually regulated. The bonus amounts represent the accrued bonuses for services rendered

during 2007.

Pension contributions include the employer’s contribution to the pension fund. Contributions to�

mandatory social insurances are not included.

No loans or credits were extended to members of the Board of Directors or Executive Board in�

2007.

For members leaving the Executive Board in the course of the year, the total amount includes com-�

pensation during their term of office including all employer’s contributions to the occupational pen-

sion scheme.
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Compensation paid to former members of the executive board

Thomas Casata, former member of the Executive Board, was paid a total of CHF 230,000 in 2007

in compliance with contractual commitments, thereby settling all claims. Following his leave as mem-

ber of the Executive Board as of 15 February 2007, Rudolf Hadorn was paid a total of CHF 786,000 in

2007 in compliance with contractual commitments.

Participations as of 31 december 2007

The following table sets out the number of participations which were held by members of the

Board of Directors and the Executive Board, including parties closely related to them:

Name Number of
shares

Number of
options

Number of
employee options
(not-exercisable)1

board of directors

Juhani Anttila, Chairman of the Board of Directors 100,000 – –

Paul E. Otth, Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors – – –

Dr. J.T. Bergqvist, Member of the Board of Directors – – –

Dr. Wolfgang Kalsbach, Member of the Board of Directors – – –

Dr. Rolf A. Meyer, Member of the Board of Directors 2,500 – –

Dr. Axel Paeger, Member of the Board of Directors – – –

executive board

Riet Cadonau, CEO 25,000 70,0002 108,500

Fritz Mumenthaler, Deputy CEO/General Manager
Wireless Solutions

– – 91,000

Alberto Romaneschi, CFO – – 62,300

Dr. Fritz Gantert, General Manager Security Solutions 18,000 – 35,500

Total (Board of Directors and Executive Board) 145,500 70,000 297,300

1in accordance with the provisions of Ascom stock option plans 2006, 2007/i and 2007/ii
2ratio of 5:1, i.e. 5 options for each share

share allotment in the year under review

Ascom Holding Ltd. allotted no shares in 2007.
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Assets

Investments include shares in Group companies amounting to CHF 78.4 million (2006: CHF 173.6

million). The decrease in investments is primarily attributable to value adjustments resulting from

dividend distributions from subsidiaries in Switzerland, France, Sweden and the UK.

The value of loans granted to Group companies was adjusted to zero.

Accounts receivable from Group companies consist mainly of short-term receivables denomi-

nated in CHF, EUR, GBP and USD. Third-party receivables primarily include outstanding payments due

on the sale of the Group company in Italy.

Liabilities and equity

Due to the increase of own shares, 2.7 CHF million was transferred from the special reserves to

the reserves for own shares.

In the year under review, loans from Group companies reduced by 12.7 CHF million, primarily due

to the offset of dividends received and loans receivable. The remaining loans are mainly denominated

in CHF and EUR.

The provisions primarily cover general valuation risks and warranties from the sale of companies

as well as receivables risks and unrealized foreign currency differences.

Based on a syndicated bank agreement, a combined cash and guarantee line of total CHF 100

million has been made available to Ascom Holding Ltd.

income statement

Income from investments decreased due to a lower amount of dividends distributed by Group

companies. The profit from the sale of non-current assets resulted from the liquidation and divestment

of Group companies as well as the sale of third party investments. Other income comprises trademark

fees charged to Group companies.

The decrease in financial expenses results on the one hand from lower interest charges paid to

Group companies and on the other hand from the fact that the company did not incur a net exchange

loss during 2007. The increase in administration expenses was mainly caused by higher consultancy

fees. The administration expenses include CHF 1.1 million (2006: CHF 1.3 million) of personnel related

costs.

In 2007, significant depreciation and value adjustments on investments arose as a result of

value corrections on investment book values due to significant dividend payouts (included in income

from investments).

Taxes comprise capital taxes only.

Annual result

In 2007, Ascom Holding Ltd posted net loss of CHF 14.5 million (2006: CHF 7.1 million profit), while

Ascom Group recorded a consolidated group loss of CHF 48.1 million (2006: CHF 17.1 million profit).

commentS on the Financial StatementS
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ProPoSal For the aPProPriation oF retained earningS 2007

in CHF 2007 2006

Retained earnings from previous year 87,836,438 80,688,459

(Loss)/profit (14,497,884) 7,147,979

retained earnings 73,338,554 87,836,438

Balance carried forward 73,338,554 87,836,438
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report of the statutory Auditors to the General Meeting

of Ascom Holding Ltd., berne

As statutory auditors, we have audited the accounting records and the financial statements

(balance sheet, income statement and notes on pages 106 to 115) of Ascom Holding Ltd for the year

ended 31 December 2007.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the board of directors. Our responsibility is

to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the

legal requirements concerning professional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss Auditing Standards, which require that an

audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-

ments are free from material misstatement. We have examined on a test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting prin-

ciples used, significant estimates made and the overall financial statement presentation. We believe

that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the accounting records, the financial statements and the proposed appropriation

of available earnings comply with Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation.

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

Stefan Räbsamen Patrick Riner

Auditor in charge

Zurich, 3 March 2008
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in CHF 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

dividend per share

Registered shares CHF 0.50 –1 – 0.28 0.275 –

equity per share2

Registered shares CHF 0.50 4.79 6.17 10.70 6.84 5.64

Profit/(loss) per share2

Registered shares CHF 0.50 (1.35) 0.48 4.04 1.30 (2.50)

stock quote high/low

Registered shares CHF 0.50 28.40/10.75 20.65/12.00 22.95/16.55 19.00/9.38 10.13/1.623

taxable values

1.1.2008 1.1.2007 1.1.2006 1.1.2005 1.1.2004

Registered shares CHF 0.50 12.35 15.35 18.65 19.00 9.36

Number of shares

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Registered shares CHF 0.50 36,000,000 36,000,000 36,000,000 36,000,000 36,000,000

of which own shares

Registered shares CHF 0.50 580,800 317,600 304,800 60,000 –

1proposed by the Board of directors
2Based on the consolidated Financial statements (excluding own shares)
3Adjusted

Key Financial data on the Share caPital
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AUSTRIA

Ascom Austria GmbH P. Bernhofer Lemböckgasse 49, 1230 Vienna

+43 I 1 811 77 0 I Fax 1 811 77 10

info@ascom.at

BELGIUM

Ascom (Belgium) NV F. Humbeeck Raketstraat 64, 1130 Brussels

+32 I 2 727 13 11 I Fax 2 727 13 00

direction@ascom.be

CZECH REPUBLIC

Ascom (CZ) s.r.o. J. Polàk Zemské právo 1199/5, 102 00 Praha 10

+420 I 267 219 512 I Fax 267 219 511

info@ascom.cz

DENMARK

Ascom Danmark A/S E. Beiter Roskildevej 342c, 2630 Tåstrup

+45 I 70 20 38 83 I Fax 70 20 38 82

info@ascom.dk

FINLAND

Ascom (Finland) Oy J. Kettunen Ensimmäinen Savu, 01510 Vantaa

+358 I 9 825 901 I Fax 9 825 902 09

info@ascom.fi

FRANCE

Ascom SAS J.P. Manson Rue Claude-Chappe, 07503 Guilherand-Granges

+33 I 475 81 41 41 I Fax 475 81 41 09

info@ascom.fr

Ascom (France) SA Ph. Chevalier 28, Avenue de l’Île Saint-Martin, 92024 Nanterre-Cedex

+33 I 8 11 90 20 10 I Fax 1 47 69 64 52

info@ascom.fr

Ascom Multitoll Solutions SAS C. Defay 18–20, Rue Jean Rostand, ZAC des Vignes, 91400 Orsay

+33 I 1 69 33 15 20 I Fax 1 69 85 31 42

info@ascom.fr

GERMANY

Ascom Deutschland GmbH J. Gebauer Edisonstrasse 11-13, 60388 Frankfurt

+49 I 6109 738 0 I Fax 6109 738 333

info@ascom.de

HONG KONG

Ascom Hong Kong Ltd. M. Ho Suites 1905-7, 19th Floor, Asian House, 1 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

+852 I 2830 9813 I Fax 2895 4558

imPortant grouP comPanieS
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MEXICO

Ascom de México S.A. de C.V. J. C. Destombes Kansas 38, Col. Napoles, 03810 México, D.F.

+52 I 5 682 33 33 I Fax 5 682 17 16

jean-claude.destombes@ascom.com

NETHERLANDS

Ascom (Nederland) BV C. Hoonhoud Savannahweg 31, Postbus 40242, 3504 AA Utrecht

+31 I 30 240 91 00 I Fax 30 341 19 46

info@ascom.nl

NORWAY

Ascom (Norway) A/S B. Barbogen Brobekkveien 80, Postboks 73, Grorud, 0905 Oslo 9

+47 I 23 24 77 00 I Fax 22 64 74 40

firmapost@ascom.no

POLAND

Ascom Poland SP. z o.o. K. Durczak ul. Farbiarska 71a, 02-862 Warsaw

+48 I 22 544 22 00 I Fax 22 544 22 05

ascom@ascom.com.pl

RUSSIA

Letus ZAO V.G. Mishenkov bld. 5, of. 106, Metrostroevtsev street, 198035 St-Petersburg

+7 I 812 783 24 68 I Fax 812 783 24 68 122

info@letus.ru

SWEDEN

Ascom (Sweden) AB B. Nordén Grimbodalen 2, P.O. Box 8783, 40276 Gothenburg

+46 I 31 55 94 00 I Fax 31 55 20 31

info@ascom.se

SWITZERLAND

Ascom Holding Ltd. R. Cadonau Belpstrasse 37, 3000 Bern 14

+41 I 31 999 11 11 I Fax 31 999 23 00

ask-ascom@ascom.ch

Ascom (Schweiz) AG R. Cadonau Belpstrasse 37, 3000 Bern 14

+41 I 31 999 11 11 I Fax 31 999 23 00

ask-ascom@ascom.ch

UK

Ascom (UK) Ltd. J. Burns Clockhouse Court, 45 Westerham Road, Sevenoaks, Kent TN13 2QB

+44 I 1732 742 014 I Fax 1732 455 865

sales@ascomws.co.uk

USA

Ascom (US) Inc. Ch. West 598 Airport Blvd, Suite 300, Morrisville, NC 27560

+1 I 919 234 25 00 I Fax 919 234 25 26

info@ascomwireless.com
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dateS and contactS

important dates 2008

15 April 2008

Annual General Meeting

BEAexpo, Berne

3 September 2008

Presentation of 2008 half-year results

SWX Swiss Exchange, Zurich

Contact addresses

Ascom Head office

Ascom (Schweiz) AG

Belpstrasse 37 | CH-3000 Berne 14

T +41 31 999 11 11 | F +41 31 999 23 00

ask-ascom@ascom.com | www.ascom.com

Ascom Corporate Media office

Ascom (Schweiz) AG

Daniel Lack, General Secretary and Press Officer

Belpstrasse 37 | CH-3000 Berne 14

T +41 31 999 43 44 | F +41 31 999 21 17

daniel.lack@ascom.ch | www.ascom.com

Ascom Corporate Finance and

investor relations

Ascom (Schweiz) AG

Alberto Romaneschi, Chief Financial Officer

Belpstrasse 37 | CH-3000 Berne 14

T +41 55 254 69 00 | F +41 55 254 69 21

investor@ascom.com | www.ascom.com
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Declaration of Forward Looking Statements

this Annual Report contains statements that constitute “forward-looking statements” relating

to Ascom. because these forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, the reader

is cautioned that actual future resultsmay differ from those expressed in or implied by the statements,

which constitute projections of possible developments. All forward-looking statements are based only

on data available to Ascom at the time of preparing the Annual Report.

this Annual Report is also available in german. for the general part and Corporate governance,

the german version is binding, for the financial section, the english version is binding. the full Annual

Report of the Ascom group can be viewed online at:

http://www.ascom.com/report

Publishing Details

Publisher Ascom (schweiz) Ag, berne

Concept tolxdorff & eicher Consulting, Horgen

Concept Financial Statements Ascom Corporate finance, berne

Design metaDesign suisse Ag, Zurich

Translation Cls Communication Ag, Zurich

Printer stämpfli publikationen Ag, berne

© Ascom Holding ltd. 2008



www.ascom.com


